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CHAPTER 1
1.1

FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

Prof. David Luka Mosoma
CHAIRPERSON
In the period under review, three non-executive Board members retired. To replace
them, two Board members and a chairperson of the Board were appointed. The Board
reconfigured its composition of Board committees to include the new appointments. A
new Board chairperson was appointed and the former chairperson assumed the role of
an ordinary Board member.
The Board held a strategic planning exercise during the mid-term to analyse TEDA’s
ability to respond to its mandate. From the strategic planning session came the call for
TEDA to refocus and build an entity that is self-sustainable and to obtain clarity in
understanding the role of shareholders in achievement of its mandate. TEDA’s growth
and its relevance within the City of Tshwane rely on TEDA’s ability to be selfsustainable and to gradually reduce dependence on the City of Tshwane for funding all
its operations and to meet its shareholder expectations.
The TEDA Business Plan 2015/16 has been developed to respond to the abovementioned challenges. The Board ensured that the performance areas included in the
performance scorecard are funded for 2015/16. Therefore, the issue of unfunded key
performance areas will not occur as in 2014/15, when it led to non-performance in certain
areas.
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1.2

FOREWORD BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr S. Mogaladi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)
a)

Vision

TEDA has attained an acceptable level of stability, and it is capable of moving to the
next level of maturity. The annual general meeting held in the fourth quarter between
TEDA and shareholder representatives set the tone for the future of this organisation.
TEDA’s envisaged role is to be instrumental in managing the implementation of projects
with the capacity of changing the economic landscape of Tshwane. At the forefront of
self-sustainability, TEDA is currently working to ensure gradual reduction of total
reliance on funding from the City of Tshwane.
The City of Tshwane, in recognition and appreciation of the current state of the entity,
has shown an appetite for assigning big projects that TEDA will manage on behalf of
City departments. This demands that TEDA should build its own capacity in order to
deliver without expanding its structure and that it should explore creative ways of
acquiring this capacity.
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TEDA has forged strategic partnerships as a form of leverage and has established
partnerships with organisations such as Royal Fields Finance and Ifa Lethu to gain
access to their small, medium and micro-sized enterprise (SMME) development
programmes. TEDA has also been active in implementing agreements that the City has
with its stakeholders, such as the Tshwane Youth Business Council.
b)

Key strategic objectives

The following table shows the alignment between the TEDA key strategic objectives
(derived from the mandate as contained in the service delivery agreement with the City),
Tshwane Vision 2055 and the City’s strategic objectives.
Tshwane
Vision 2055

City of Tshwane SDBIP

TEDA’s strategic objectives
To promote, facilitate and coordinate investment
in strategic infrastructure to create value for the
City of Tshwane
To establish and maintain an economic
infrastructure investment vehicle
To identify, design, develop and manage projects
with strategic economic and/or social benefits for
the greater Tshwane community

Outcome 2:
A growing
economy that is
inclusive,
diversified and
competitive

Strategic Objective 2:
Promote shared economic growth and job
creation

To develop and maintain a strategic immovable
and property asset portfolio for maximum return
on investment
To facilitate the implementation of agreements
signed between the City of Tshwane and key
stakeholders
To promote Tshwane as a viable investment
destination through implementing an integrated
marketing and communication programme

Outcome 5:
An African
capital city that
promotes
excellence and
innovative
governance

c)

Strategic Objective 4:
Promote good governance and an active
citizenry

To establish and build TEDA as a strong and
effective organisation in the context of good
governance best practices

Key policy developments

TEDA’s above-mentioned strategic objectives are guided by the outcomes of the City’s
Integrated Development Plan (IDP), Growth and Development Strategy (GDS) and
Vision 2055. TEDA’s response to the strategic focus of the City was to identify projects
that will derive economic value for the City in the long run. These projects, which are
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mostly at the initial stages of their project life cycle, will be implemented in 2016/17 and
beyond.
TEDA has reprioritised its limited ﬁnancial resources to provide capacity for its core
business and has identiﬁed key positions within the organisation that will be ﬁlled to
support its strategic focus.
d)

Key service delivery improvements

Highlights
·

TEDA has completed a pre-feasibility study for the Tshwane Agro-processing
Hub Project. The establishment of the Tshwane Agro-processing
Hub Project is
P
envisaged to yield more than 300 jobs and R1,7 billion of gross value added over
a ﬁve-year period.

·

A number of investment leads were generated from potential foreign investors
who are currently still doing due diligence studies of their own. If these leads
materialise into projects, approximately R1 billion worth of investment will be
achieved.

·

The entity developed and started implementing the ﬁnancial sustainability model,
which among others is underpinned by own revenue generation, prudent use of
available resources and income diversiﬁcation.

·

TEDA hosted the multi-sectoral Tshwane Inaugural Exporters Awards.

·

TEDA underwent an organisational development process with the aim of aligning
the current skill set with those needed to respond to its mandate and placing
TEDA globally among the best economic development agencies.

·

TEDA hosted the SMME Fair, which has grown since its inception as a funding
fair to become one of TEDA’s ﬂagship events that targets Tshwane -based
SMMEs and entrepreneurs. The event was covered on various platforms,
including the CBNC AFRICA as a clear brand. Attendance increased, as did
tangible assistance to SMMEs. Five SMMEs will attend a programme with the
following beneﬁts:
-

Business assessment

-

Wits University entrepreneurship course

-

High-growth strategy development

-

Mentoring and coaching
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·

-

Networking and strategic linkages

-

Financial planning and management

-

Assistance with legal and regulatory compliance

-

Funding

A youth entrepreneur drive, which seeks to respond to ways and means of
curbing unemployment and encouraging a culture of entrepreneurship, was
hosted. A pledge-signing ceremony was held in June where stakeholders
committed to be part of the drive. The stakeholders that have already committed
to taking part in this process include the following:
-

The Innovation Hub

-

University of Pretoria – Business Enterprise

-

Gauteng Enterprise Propeller (GEP)

-

Small Enterprise Finance Agency (SEFA)

-

Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA)

-

National Youth Development Agency (NYDA)

-

Tshwane Youth Business Council (TYBC)

-

South African Youth Council (SAYC)

-

Khitsane Investment

-

EgoliBio

Challenges and mitigation controls
Table 1: Challenges and mitigation controls
CHALLENGES

MITIGATION CONTROLS

Maturity of organisational systems

Development of standard operating procedures as a
start towards Implementing Quality Management
System.

Lack of research capacity

Outsourcing research functions and/or leveraging
research outputs generated by partners

Unavailability of trade and investment intelligence due to
lack of ﬁnancial resources

Tapping into subscribed databases of the City as well
as national and provincial governments

Lack of ﬁnancial resources to undertake trade and
investment missions

Leveraging mainly inward-bound missions
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e)

Performance trends for 2013/14 and 2014/15

TEDA experienced improved performance against the set key performance indicators
between 2013/14 and 2014/15. TEDA’s contribution towards the City’s SDBIP targets
was a success with regard to SMME support. This was made possible by the
collaborative eﬀorts between TEDA and some of its key stakeholder such as the
Department of Trade and Industry and its entities. Notwithstanding the achievements,
there were no committed investment projects that were implemented through facilitation
of investment attraction.
However, some investments enquiries by potential investors were attended to by TEDA
where all the necessary information and support was provided. The relatively
unsuccessful investment facilitation resulted in TEDA not doing well with regard to its
contribution to job creation in the year under review.
In the mid-term, TEDA realigned its key performance indicators and targets with the
available budget. This was mainly done to avoid carrying unfunded mandates in the
business plan, which has the consequence of non-achievement of key performance
targets. The overall recorded performance on the key performance indicators for
2014/15 is 95.5% achievement. However, 6 targets out of 28 were not achieved due to
unforeseen challenges.
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1.3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TEDA is a state-owned company that was established in November 2006 and is solely
owned by the City of Tshwane. TEDA is largely governed by the Companies Act, 2008
(Act 71 of 2008), the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000),
as amended, and the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003
(Act 56 of 2003) (MFMA), as amended, and its regulations.
The Service Delivery Agreement (SDA) entered into by TEDA and the City sets the
mandate. TEDA has recently concluded an organisational development exercise, which
was undertaken to provide guidance on the organisational structure and skill set that are
appropriate for the entity to deliver on its mandate, encapsulated into the following:
Core business components
·
·
·

Projects Portfolio Management
Property and asset management
Investment promotion and funding
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Support functions
·
·
·
·

Strategy and performance monitoring
Financial services
Oﬃce of the company secretary
Corporate services

The entity was allocated a budget of R47.5 million over the medium term, including the
next ﬁnancial year. TEDA underwent a reprioritisation exercise in order to ensure
suﬃcient allocation of resources in its core business components. In the next ﬁnancial
year, this reprioritisation will be maintained to provide an acceptable balance between
the budget allocation for non-core functions and core functions. In order to ensure that
TEDA is self-sustainable in future years, a ﬁnancial sustainability model has been
developed and is being implemented. The model indicates the projected revenue that
the entity can generate should it employ the income initiatives spelled out in the model.
The entity identiﬁed projects in the 2014/15 ﬁnancial year which are anticipated to run
through the medium term and also managed some of the projects that will be handed
over to TEDA by City departments. This is in light of TEDA’s primary mandate of being
an implementation vehicle for the City as stipulated in the SDA.
During the 2014/15 ﬁnancial year, TEDA developed the Trade and Investment Strategy,
which serves as an overarching framework for its trade and investment interventions. As
a result, an automotive sub-sector investment opportunity identiﬁcation study was
conducted. Its outcomes will sharpen and focus TEDA’s investment promotion eﬀorts in
the sector going forward. A study was also undertaken to identify Tshwane’s export
potential. Its outcomes include identiﬁed exportable products and services, Tshwanebased exporting companies, and potential export markets.
TEDA led an outward mission to the Democratic Republic of Congo with the primary
aim being to expose companies that took part in the Tshwane Inaugural Exporters
Awards to international markets. TEDA will ensure that these companies are provided
with after-care support to ensure that they maintain their share in the export market.
The entity has implemented a performance management system which resulted in the
development of individual scorecards for all executive managers and their staﬀ.
Performance assessments of the individuals are carried out on a quarterly basis and
aligned with the overall organisational performance.
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CHAPTER 2
2.1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TEDA’s Board of Directors is committed to ethical leadership and a performanceexcellence culture within the company as required by the King Code of Corporate
Governance Principles (King III). The Board is devoted to ensuring the highest
standards of corporate governance compliance, risk management and prudent financial
management.
The Board is accountable to the company’s shareholder, the City of Tshwane, for
implementing the shareholder’s compact and long-term business strategy through
oversight on the management of the company’s operations in line with the company’s
vision of being a leading African economic development agency. The Board of Directors
confirms that the company has complied with King III during the year under review.
Composition of the Board of Directors
Table 2: Board of Directors
Board member

Capacity:
Executive/Nonexecutive

Race

Gender

Board Committee membership

Prof DL Mosoma
(Chairperson)

Non-executive

African

Male

·

Social and Ethics

RS Bahula-Ermias

Non-executive

African

Female

·
·

Social and Ethics
Remuneration

H Gouvelis

Non-executive

White

Male

·
·

Trade and Investment
Finance, Risk and
Governance

LD Haskins*

Non-executive

Coloured

Female

·
·

Trade and Investment
Finance, Risk and
Governance

J Matsho*

Non-executive

African

Male

·
·

Projects
Finance, Risk and
Governance

ZG Mpungose

Non-executive

African

Female

·
·

Trade and Investment
Remuneration

CR Mpyane

Non-executive

African

Male

·
·

Projects Committee
Remuneration
Projects
Finance, Risk and
Governance

SP Mzizi

Non-executive

African

Female

·
·

NM Ntsinde*

Non-executive

African

Female

·
·

Projects
Finance, Risk and
Governance

FK Sibanda

Non-executive

African

Male

·

Trade and Investment
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Board member

Capacity:
Executive/Nonexecutive

Race

Gender

N Singh

Non-executive

Indian

Female

JL Thubakgale

Non-executive

African

L Vutula

Non-executive

M Yates

Non-executive

Board Committee membership

·

Finance, Risk and
Governance
Social and Ethics

Male

·
·

Social and Ethics
Remuneration

African

Male

·

Remuneration

White

Male

·
·

Projects
Trade and Investment

·

* These non-executive directors resigned during the financial year under review.

2.2

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK PRESCRIBING THE FUNCTIONS OF THE
ENTITY
·

TEDA strives to comply with the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and
the enabling general legislative prescripts. In particular, TEDA is committed to
comply with all relevant applicable legislation, ie the following acts and the
regulations thereof:
· Companies Act, 2009 (Act 71 of 2008) ;
· Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 of
2003) ;
· Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000);
· Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Amendment Act, 2003 (Act 53
of 2003);
· National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act 107 of 1998);
· Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993);
· Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act 66 of 1995);
· Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act 75 of 1997);
· Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act 55 of 1998);
· Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act 2 of 2000); and
· Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act 97 of 1998) .

TEDA approved a Corporate Governance Policy Framework in April 2014. The policy
framework sets out, amongst other things, roles and responsibilities of the shareholder,
Board and management. The framework was developed in line with King III. It also
incorporates the Code of Conduct for employees and directors, Fraud Prevention
Policy, Conflict of Interests Policy and ICT Governance Framework. TEDA adopted
various human capital policies in compliance with labour market legislation.
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TEDA also adopted a Delegation of Authority Framework and Supply Chain
Management Policy, which allocate powers and functions to the Board, management
committees, CEO and individual executive managers.
2.3

FUNCTIONING OF THE BOARD AGAINST THE WORK PLAN 2014/15

The Board approved an Annual Work Plan at the beginning of the financial year. This
plan has guided the work of the Board and its committees.
2.4

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established the following committees to strengthen its oversight role:
2.4.1 Projects Committee
The mandate of the committee is to advise the Board on the implementation of the
projects portfolio of TEDA. The committee uses the Projects Management Framework
adopted by the Board to perform its functions.
2.4.2 Trade and Investment Committee
The mandate of the committee is to advise the Board on City of Tshwane economic
development initiatives which include, but are not restricted to the following:
·
·
·
·

Trade and investment promotion, facilitation and aftercare ;
Implementing the City of Tshwane’s investment pipeline;
Promoting export-ready companies ; and
Developing Ffacilitation which includes packaging and promoting investment
projects and nodal development, eg the implementation of the inner-city
revitalisation programmes.

2.4.3 Remuneration Committee
The mandate of the committee is to advise the Board on the development and
implementation of the remuneration and recruitment policies of TEDA, as well as other
human capital policies.
The Remuneration Committee spearheaded the organisational design intervention in
order
ordertotoensure
that TEDA has the right structure with appropriate competencies among its staff
to deliver on TEDA’s strategic objectives.
2.4.4 Finance, Risk and Governance Committee
The terms of reference of this committee include the following:
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·
·
·
·

Ensuring the development of corporate governance, ﬁnancial and organisational
performance policies of TEDA;
Monitoring TEDA’s compliance with laws and regulations and reporting any
incidents of non-compliance to the Board;
Ensuring that TEDA’s fraud prevention policies are in place and implemented; and
Ensuring the development and management of a Risk Management Policy and
plans.

2.4.5 Social and Ethics Committee
This statutory committee was established in terms of the Companies Regulations, 2011.
Its terms of reference include monitoring the activities of the company on socioeconomic development matters and the company's standing regarding –
·
·
·
·
·

the principles set out in the United Nations Global Compact Principles;
the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development recommendations
regarding corruption;
the Employment Equity Act, 1998;
the Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003; and
TEDA’s corporate social responsibility.

2.4.6 Audit and Performance Committee of the City of Tshwane and its municipal
entities
The risk-based audit function of TEDA is dependent on the shared resources provided
by the City of Tshwane through the Group Audit Committee and the Group Internal
Audit Unit.
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Board committee meetings for the 2014/15 financial year
Table 3: Board committee meetings attendance

Meetings

Board

REMCO

Projects

Trade and
Investment

Finance,
Risk and
Governance

Social
and
Ethics

Board
members

12

7

3

3

4

1

LD Mosoma
(Chairperson)

2

-

-

-

-

RS BahulaErmias

9

5

?

?

H Gouvelis

12

?

?

LD Haskins

1

-

J Matsho

6

TITIIC

Nomination
Committee

Workshop

AGM

5

3

6

2

1

-

-

-

-

1

1

4

?

1

?

?

6

2

1

24

2

4

?

?

?

5

2

1

26

-

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

Retired

-

1

1

2

-

-

-

-

1

-

11

Retired

2

1

-

-

-

-

1

-

1

1

6

Newly
appointed

11

7

3

?

?

?

?

1

4

2

1

29

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

1

4

Newly
appointed

NM Ntsinde

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

Retired

FK Sibanda

7

?

2

3

?

?

?

?

?

2

1

15

N Singh

7

?

?

?

3

1

5

?

?

1

1

19

JL Thubakgale

12

6

?

?

?

1

?

?

?

2

1

22

L Vutula

11

2

?

?

?

?

?

?

6

2

1

18

MW Yates

11

3

3

2

?

?

?

2

?

2

1

24

ZG Mpungose
CR Mpyane
SP Mzizi

15

APC

Total

Comments

Newly
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Directors’ remuneration
Table 4: Total of non-executive directors’ remuneration for the 2014/15 financial year

Number

Surname

Initials

Year to date

1

Mosoma

LD

R41 136

2

Bahula- Ermias

RS

R211 086

3

Gouvelis

H

R173 378

4

Matsho

J

R94 270

5

Mpungose

ZG

R37 708

6

Mpyane

C

R233 368

7

Mzizi

SP

R30 852

8

Ntsinde

NM

R11 998

9

Sibanda

FK

R116 552

10

Singh

N

R118 266

11

Thubakgale

JL

R187 090

12

Vutula

L

R225 062

13

Yates

MW

R207 640

Total

R1 725 670
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Table 5: Executive remuneration for 2014/15

Total cost to
company:
Monthly before
all deductions

Name

Designation

Total cost to
company

Boledi Seopela

Executive Corporate
Services

R1 409 628,00

R117 469,00

Solly Mogaladi

Chief Executive Oﬃcer

R1 709 808,00

R142 484,00

Khanya Mahlare

Executive Marketing and
Communications

R1 409 628,00

R117 469,00

Lebogang Mahaye

Company Secretary

R1 174 690,00

R97 890,83

Mmatlou Sebogodi

Chief Financial Oﬃcer

R1 409 628,00

R117 469,00

Tshifhiwa Mafela

Executive Trade and
Investment

R1 409 628,00

R117 469,00

R8 523 010,00

R710 250,83

Total

2.5

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

2.5.1 TEDA’s Risk Management Strategy
TEDA has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management Strategy and Policy of the City of Tshwane. The strategy lays out
guiding principles for the enterprise-wide management of risk.
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2.5.2 Provision of TEDA’s Risk Management Plan
TEDA’s Strategic Risk Plan was developed through a consultative process involving all the unit heads. Strategic risks
were identiﬁed and submitted to the Board for approval and subsequently approved by the City Risk Committee and
Council.
Table 6: TEDA’s strategic risk register:

Lack of critical skills

Management action plan

High

Lack of ﬁnancial sustainability model

Residual Risk

Develop and implement ﬁnancial sustainability plan with clear
deﬁnition of revenue streams

High

Strategic risk

Conduct skills audit

Develop investment assessment framework
High

Failure to attract investors

Develop organisational development processes

Develop investment promotion strategy
Package investment incentives

Failure to retain investors and provide aftercare investors

High

Conduct market research on investor environment through
continuous development of investor aftercare programme

Inadequate stakeholder engagement

Medium

Employ additional capacity

Develop and implement a stakeholder engagement strategy

Develop a procedure manual
High

Incorrect assessment of projects
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Strategic risk

Residual Risk
Low

Poor implementation of governance processes
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Management action plan
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Ensure that policies and procedures are in place for key business
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2.5.3 Risk management assessment processes followed
TEDA adopted the Public Sector Risk Management Framework from the National
Treasury and the King III report to ensure that risk-management processes within TEDA
are streamlined to best practices as indicated on the Enterprise Risk Management
Policy for the City of Tshwane and its entities.
An annual assessment, review and identification of risks within TEDA were done. The
aim of the review and identification is to minimise the risks faced by the entity as much
as possible and to fulfil the expectations of the shareholders and other stakeholders.
To ensure TEDA’s future sustainability, management looked at risks facing the entity
across its major risk categories, these being strategic risk, financial risk, operational
risk, governance risk and information technology risk.
TEDA’s management is responsible for ensuring that the Risk Management Strategy
and Policy are implemented. They do this by taking active responsibility in the riskmanagement process and owning up to the action plans as approved by the Board.
In the year under review, TEDA underwent a risk-maturity assessment which placed its
maturity level at 2, and the entity has made a commitment to get to at least Level 3 in
the 2015/16 financial year.
2.5.4 TEDA’s risk management, internal audit and the Audit Committee function
The Board has delegated the responsibility of risk management to the City’s Risk
Committee and that of reviewing the effectiveness of the internal controls to the Audit
and Performance Committee. These committees use information drawn from many
different sources to carry out this review. The Board is represented on both committees,
and information flows from the Risk Committee to the Board for final ratification and
approval.
Managers are responsible for identifying and effectively managing all risks in their areas
of responsibility, and for how they will mitigate risks through enhancing internal control
measures applied in their respective areas of operation. Further objective assurance is
provided by the external auditors and other external specialists.
The internal audit capacity that serves the entity resides within the City in keeping with
the quest to reduce costs where possible through the use of shared services
arrangements between the City and its entities. The Internal Audit Unit provides
objective assurance to management, the Board and the Audit and Performance
Committee. The annual work plan of the Internal Audit Unit is developed in conjunction
with TEDA’s management and focuses on key risks and key internal controls. Where
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the Internal Audit Unit provides recommendations, management has the obligation to
develop and implement corrective action plans and address the root causes. These are
tracked on a regular basis by the Internal Audit Unit at the City of Tshwane, and the
results are reported to the executive management, the Audit and Performance
Committee and the Board.
2.6

TEDA’S SUPPLY CHAIN PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES

Supply Chain Management is an integral part of financial management and its role is to
render support services in terms of goods and professional services to TEDA. Goods
and services are procured in a system that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive
and cost-effective. It is always ascertained that the procurement system operates within
a framework that promotes and affirms historically disadvantaged individuals and
provides categories of black economic empowerment (BEE) preference in allocating
contracts.
Supply Chain Management is divided into five elements (phases) which are
summarised as follows:
Demand management deals with identifying needs for goods and services, ensuring
that requirements are linked to the budget, conducting a stakeholder analysis, drafting
specifications or terms of reference, determining preferential procurement strategies,
determining the evaluation criteria, determining the lead and delivery times, estimating
the cost of goods and services, and obtaining the necessary approvals for the
acquisition of goods and services. In this phase, the end user plays the biggest role with
the assistance of the Procurement Unit. A Specification Committee is appointed and
comprises the end user, Supply Chain Management (SCM) members and any other role
players to facilitate this process.
Acquisition management is the second phase of SCM. In this phase, a decision on
how to approach the market is made, the total cost of ownership is determined, bid
documents are compiled, bids are invited and evaluated, and contracts are signed. This
phase is executed by the Procurement Unit with some assistance from the end user and
other role players. A Bid Evaluation Committee is appointed and comprises the end
user, SCM members and any other role players to facilitate this process. A tender
committee, known as the Bid Adjudication Committee, is also appointed to evaluate the
adjudicated contracts.
Logistics management is the third phase, and it elaborates on the requisitioning of
goods from the store (inventory management). It deals with items which are kept at the
store for issuing to end users on request. Such items are kept at the store due to
repetitive or frequent requirement which makes it impractical to invite price quotations
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for each request. Orders are placed from suppliers that are registered on the supplier
database system to solicit the above-mentioned goods, unless a contract has been
entered into. The process of placing orders, as well as receiving and dispatching, falls
within this ambit.
Disposal management is a phase where unserviceable, redundant or obsolete
movable items are dealt with. A Disposal Committee is appointed to recommend the
proper disposal strategy.
All the above-mentioned elements are conducted in accordance with delegated
powers/authority.
Supply chain performance is the ﬁnal phase. This is where projects are monitored at
their completion. The SCM process is monitored to determine whether the desired
objectives and goals were achieved.
Asset management: SCM is also responsible for the eﬀective, eﬃcient, economic and
transparent use, management, safeguarding and maintenance of assets. Various types
of forms are utilised to ensure proper control while relocating and/or moving assets
around. Assets must be physically assessed annually to determine their useful life. This
is accomplished through inspecting the physical condition of the assets.
2.6.1 Supply chain management capacity within TEDA
Currently, SCM consists of the following three permanent staﬀ members:
DESIGNATION

RESPONSIBILITY

Senior Manager: SCM

Supply chain performance and policy development

Manager: SCM

Tender administration

Supply Chain Practitioner

Price quotation

2.6.2 TEDA procurement in line with the provisions of the MFMA
·

Identify and prioritise needs of the end users

·

Conﬁrm availability of funds (budget)

·

Analyse the market to be utilised and research speciﬁcations

·

Determine whether to go for a tender or price quotation

·

Draft terms of reference (Speciﬁcation committee minutes, Code of Conduct,
Terms of Reference, attendance register, minutes or memo)
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·

Special conditions (if applicable)

·

Prepare bid documents

·

Publish in relevant media

·

Briefing session (if relevant)

·

Issue and receipt register

·

Shortlist bidders on minimum requirements of the bid

·

Send memorandum to end user and receive comments from end user

·

Make presentations (if necessary) (Evaluation Committee minutes, Code of
Conduct, attendance register, minutes or memo)

·

Conduct evaluation (price): 80/20 below R1 million and 90/10 above R1 million

·

Conduct functionality and BEE evaluation

·

Vet service providers (National Treasury, SARS, CIPRO and various entities)

·

Make recommendations (BAC) (Bid Adjudication Committee minutes, Code
of Conduct, attendance register, minutes or memo)

·

Issue approval and award (Accounting officer)

·

Perform probity check whenever necessary

·

Send confirmation letter to SARS and CIPRO if above R10 million (NIPP)

·

Advertise results on website

·

Conduct due diligence

2.6.3 Supply Chain Management Policy approval in line with the Municipal
Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 of 2003)
All SCM policies are approved by the relevant Board through the Finance, Risk and
Governance Committee. Before approval is granted or the policy is adopted, it is
ensured that the policy is aligned with all relevant legislative frameworks, such as the
SCM Directive for Municipal Accounting officers, Municipal Acts, Municipal Supply
Chain Model, etc.
The following deviations were motivated accordingly and approved:
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Table 7: Deviations
DEVIATION
NUMBER

SERVICE PROVIDER

AMOUNT

REASON FOR DEVIATION

1

Global Africa Network

R60 000,00

Sole provider

2

BBM Media

R73 119,60

Sole provider

3

Hogan Lovells Incorporation

R71 700,74

Single source

4

CQS (Caseware)

R298 888,19

Contract exceeds 12 months

5

Exhibition Management Services

R277 136,27

Sole provider

6

Outsurance

R5 110,36 pm

Contract exceeds 12 months

Table 8: TEDA’s supply chain committees and functions
SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

GUIDELINES

FUNCTIONS
AND PURPOSE
OF THE
COMMITTEE

Bid Specification
Committee

Regulation 27
of the
Municipal
SCM Act

Bid Evaluation
Committee

Bid Adjudication
Committee

NUMBER
OF
MEETINGS
PLANNED

ACTUAL

Compiling
specifications
and terms of
reference

3

3

Regulation 28
of the
Municipal
SCM Act

Evaluating
bidder’s ability to
execute the
contract in
accordance with
set standards
and criteria

3

3

Regulation 29
of the
Municipal
SCM Act

Considering the
Bid Evaluation
Committee report
and, depending
on delegated
powers, either
approves or
recommends to
the accounting
officer

3

3
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Table 9: TEDA Bid Adjudication Committee structure and non-compliance with the requirements
SUPPLY
CHAIN
MANAGEM
ENT
PROCURE
MENT
THRESHOL
D AND
DELEGATI
ONS
(TABLE 10)
VALUE OF
PURCHASE

PROCUREMENT
METHOD AND
REQUIREMENTS

DELEGA
TED
OVERSIG
AUTHO
HT ROLE
RITY

PROCUREME
NT
REQUIREMEN
T DEVIATION

REASONS

INTERVENTIO
N/ACTION
TAKEN

0 to R2 000

Petty cash

CFO

CFO

N/A

N/A

N/A

R2 001 to
R10 000

Three quotations

CEO

CEO

N/A

N/A

N/A

R10 001 to
R30 000

Three formal written
price quotations

CEO

CEO

N/A

N/A

N/A

R30 001 to
R200 000

Three formal written
quotations

CEO

CEO

Not advertised
on website

Website in
developme
nt stage

Website
developed and
functional

Unlimited

In terms of Regulation
36(2) of SCM
Regulation 276363 of
30 May 2005, the
accounting officer must
record the reasons for
any deviation in terms
of Sub-regulation
(1)(a)(b) and report
them to the next
meeting of the Council
or Board of Directors in
the case of a municipal
entity, and include as a
note to the annual
financial statements.

CEO

Board

Global Africa
Network

Sole
provider

Deviation
motivated and
approved

CEO

Board

BBM Media

Sole
provider

Deviation
motivated and
approved

CEO

Board

Hogan Lovells
Incorporation

Single
source

Deviation
motivated and
approved

CEO

Board

CQS
(Caseware)

Contract
exceeds 12
months

Deviation
motivated and
approved

CEO

Board

Exhibition
Management
Services

Sole
provider

Deviation
motivated and
approved

The procurement of a
long-term contract
(more than 12 months)
Regulation 12(d)(i)(ii)
and Regulation 11(2)
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SUPPLY
CHAIN
MANAGEM
ENT
PROCURE
MENT
THRESHOL
D AND
DELEGATI
ONS
(TABLE 10)
VALUE OF
PURCHASE

PROCUREMENT
METHOD AND
REQUIREMENTS

DELEGA
TED
AUTHO
RITY

OVERSIG
HT ROLE

PROCUREME
NT
REQUIREMEN
T DEVIATION

CEO

Board

Outsurance
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CHAPTER 3
3.1

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

The entity entered into an SDA with the City of Tshwane, and the document is up for
review in the 2015/16 ﬁnancial year. TEDA contributes to the SDBIP targets, mainly to
the City’s Strategic Objective 2, which is to promote shared economic growth and job
creation. The following two key performance indicators (KPIs) have been built into
TEDA’s scorecard:
·
·

Number of new income-earning opportunities facilitated by TEDA
Number of SMMEs and entrepreneurs supported by TEDA

TEDA performed above the set target under SMME support for the year under review.
There was, however, a challenge with meeting the ﬁrst KPI due to unsuccessful
investment facilitation.
3.2

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

The entity has achieved a total of 95.5% performance on its scorecard as indicated in
the Quality Progress Report System for the 2014/15 ﬁnancial year. The overall
performance has seen improvement from the previous ﬁnancial year. The audit of the
Quarter 4 performance information by Internal Audit has conﬁrmed a marked
performance improvement by the entity for the 2014/15 ﬁnancial year. The following
describes is TEDA’s performance for the year, as subsequently audited by Internal
Audit after the submission of the Quarter 4 performance report.
3.2.1 Strategic Objective 1
To develop, facilitate and promote viable foreign and local investments in Tshwane (City
of Tshwane Strategic Objective 2: Promote shared economic growth and job creation)

No.

1.1

Output

Trade
investment
intelligence
acquired

Achieved or not
achieved

Comments/
reason for
deviation/
corrective
measure

Performance
indicator

Annual
target

Annual
performance
achieved

Number of trade
and investment
reports/studies
produced

1

3

Achieved

-

Number of export
market briefs
produced

2

3

Achieved

-
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1.2

1.3

New and
existing
investments
attracted
and/or
expanded

Export
development
and promotion
services
provided

Number of
investment leads
generated,
followed up and
facilitated

20

45

Achieved

-

Number of
capacity-building
initiatives held for
SMME export
readiness

2

6

Achieved

-

Number of
outward and
inward trade and
investment
missions
undertaken,
hosted and/or
participated

2

7

Achieved

-

3.2.2 Strategic Objective 2
To establish and maintain an economic infrastructure investment vehicle (City of
Tshwane Strategic Objective 5: Improve ﬁnancial sustainability)

No.

Output

2.1

TEDA’s
ﬁnancial
sustainability
model

2.2

Facilitate
economic
growth that
is labourabsorptive

Performance
indicator

Development
and
implementation
of the funding
model with
multiple revenue
streams

Annual
performa
nce
target

Financial
sustainabil
ity model

Annual
perform
ance
achieve
d
Phase 1
of the
impleme
ntation
plan is in
progress

Achieved or
not achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

Achieved

-

Number of new
income-earning
opportunities
facilitated by
TEDA

250

0

Not achieved

The 2015/16
business plan
includes a
refurbishment
project. TEDA
will also
increase its
investment
attraction
eﬀorts.

Provide SMME
and
entrepreneurs
supported by
TEDA

460

549

Achieved

-
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No.

Output

Performance
indicator

Annual
performa
nce
target

Annual
perform
ance
achieve
d

Achieved or
not achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

[Does this mean
“Provision of
SMME and
entrepreneur
support by
TEDA”?]

460

549

Achieved

-

3.2.3 Strategic Objective 3
To identify, design, develop and manage projects with strategic economic and social
benefits for the greater Tshwane community (City of Tshwane Strategic Objective 2:
Promote shared economic growth and job creation)

No.

3.1

3.2

3.3

Output

Development
of Cullinan
area

Performance
indicator

Annual
performanc
e target

Annual
performa
nce
achieved

Achieved or not
achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

Needs and demand
assessment
(desktop study)
conducted

1

1

Achieved

-

Project charter
produced

1

1

Achieved

-

Feasibility study

1

0

Not achieved

The feasibility
study could not
commence due to
budgetary
constraints.

Project charter
produced

1

1

Achieved

-

Facilitate funding
application

1

1

Achieved

-

Advance biomanufacturing

Tshwane Agroprocessing
Hub

Facilitate feasibility
study development

1

0

Not achieved

The project was
removed from the
business plan in
accordance with
the Mayoral
Committee report
of January 2015.

Project charter
produced

1

1

Achieved

-

Funding application

1

1

Achieved

-
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Partnership
agreements
entered into

n

3.5

Region 1
Youth
Greening
Project

TITIIC

Number of
participants trained
according to the
agreement

Planning and
execution of TITIIC

1

1

50

0

Launch of
TITIIC
Conference

0

Achieved

-

Not achieved

The rollover of
funding for training
of cooperatives
has been
requested and will
take place after
approval in
2015/16.

Not achieved

Problems were
experienced with
the 100% funding
model by external
sources of
revenue. TEDA is
seeking Council
approval on the
postponement of
TITIIC to April
2016 and
reviewing the
funding model.

3.2.4 Strategic Objective 4
To develop and maintain a strategic immovable and property asset portfolio for
maximum return on investment (City of Tshwane Strategic Objective 2: Promote shared
economic growth and job creation)

No.

4.1

Output

Manage,
develop and
facilitate
strategic land
and building
portfolio

Performance
indicator

Annual
performanc
e target

Annual
performa
nce
achieved

Achieved or not
achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

Number of land
parcels identified
for development

1

0

Not achieved

An asset and
property
management
function has not
yet been
established in
TEDA.

Number of buildings
identified for
revitalisation

1

1

Achieved

-
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3.2.5 Strategic Objective 5
To facilitate the implementation of agreements signed between the City of Tshwane and
key stakeholders (City of Tshwane Strategic Objective 2: Promote shared economic
growth and job creation)

No.

Output

Performa nce
indica tor

5.1

Facilitation of
the
implementation
of agreements
entered into by
the City

Number of
initiatives
implemented to
support the signed
agreement

Annua l
performa n
ce ta rget

Annua l
performa
nce
a chieved

Achieved or
Not a chieved

Comments/ rea s
ons for
devia tion/ correc
tive mea sures

1

1

Achieved

-

3.2.6 Strategic Objective 6
To promote Tshwane as a viable investment destination through the implementation of
an integrated marketing and communication programme (City of Tshwane Strategic
Objective 2: Promote shared economic growth and job creation)
Annual
perform
ance
achieve
d

Achieved or
not achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

No.

Output

Performance
indicator

Annual
performa
nce
target

6.1

City’s
increased
competitive
ness

Number of
marketing
events hosted
to promote the
City’s
competitiveness

1

2

Achieved

-

6.2

TEDA
positioned
and
profiled as
brand

Number of
internal and
external
platforms used
to profile and
position TEDA

12

33

Achieved

-

3.2.7 Strategic Objective 7
To establish and build TEDA as a strong and effective organisation in the context of
good governance best practices (City of Tshwane Strategic Objective 4: Promote good
governance and active citizenry)
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No.

Output

7.1

Corporate
governance
compliance

Performance
indicator

Annual
performanc
e target

Annual
performa
nce
achieved

Achieved or not
achieved

Comments/
reasons for
deviation/
corrective
measures

Not achieved

TEDA achieved an
unqualified audit
with repeated
findings. Repeated
findings will be
addressed.

Unqualified audit
without repeated
findings

100%

7.2

A wellresourced
and
performancemanaged
workforce
supported by
an ICT
strategy

Establishment and
implementation of
good human
resource practices

Implementat
ion of
selected
human
resource
good
practices

0

Not achieved

Phase 2 of SAP
implementation of
project will
commence in
September 2015.

7.3

Risk
management
strategy
implemented

Number of strategic
risk-monitoring
reports compiled
and submitted to
the Board

4

4

Achieved

-

Systems and
processes
improvement

Introduction of
guidelines for
systems and
processes in order
to improve TEDA
operations

Standard
operating
procedures
developed

Standard
operating
procedure
s
document
ed and
developed

Achieved

-

7.4

0%
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CHAPTER 4
4.1

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The following organogram is an outcome of the organisational development process.
TEDA BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
1 X CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

BUSINESS UNIT:
PROJECTS PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
1 X EXECUTIVE MANAGER: PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
MANAGEMENT

BUSINESS UNIT:
PROPERTIES & ASSET MANAGEMENT

STRATEGY & PERFORMANCE MONITORING

1 X EXECUTIVE MANAGER: PROPERTIES & ASSET
MANAGEMENT

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT: PROJECT
MANAGEMENT

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT : PROPERTY ASSETS
FEASIBILITY

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT FACILITATION

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT : PROPERTY ASSETS
PORTFOLIO

1 X EXECUTIVE MANAGER
: STRATEGY &
PERFORMANCE MONITORING

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT: STRATEGIC SERVICES

SUB - BUSINESS UNIT : PERFORMANCE &
REPORTING

BUSINESS UNIT:
INVESTMENT PROMOTION & FUNDING

BUSINESS UNIT:
CORPORATE SERVICES

1 X EXECUTIVE MANAGER
: INVESTMENT
PROMOTION & FUNDING

1 X EXECUTIVE MANAGER
: CORPORATE
SERVICES

1 X INTERNAL AUDITOR

1 X COMPANY SECRETARY

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: BOARD SECRETARIAT

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT : ADMINISTRATIVE
SUPPORT

BUSINESS UNIT:
FINANCIAL SERVICES
1 X CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: INVESTMENT CENTRE

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT & DEVELOPMENT(HRM&D)

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: EXPORT DEVELOPMENT
& PROMOTION

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: INFORMATION &
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT)

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT (SCM)

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT
: MARKETING&
COMMUNICATIONS

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT:
INTERNAL AUDIT

BUSINESS UNIT:
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY

SUB- BUSINESS UNIT: LEGAL &
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT :
RISK & COMPLIANCE

EXECUTIVE SUPPORT

1 X RISK OFFICER

1 X EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

As part of the Organisational Design project, the new structure was developed and
approved. The organogram consists of 61 positions, with 35 ﬁlled posts. The following
business units are shown on the organogram:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Oﬃce of the CEO
Strategy and Performance Monitoring (Sub-unit in the Oﬃce of the CEO)
Oﬃce of the Company Secretary
Projects Portfolio Management
Properties and Asset Management
Investment Promotion and Funding
Corporate Services
Financial Services
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·
·

Internal Audit (Reporting to the City of Tshwane Audit Committee)
Risk and Compliance (Reporting to the City of Tshwane Audit Committee)

Table 10: EEA report on female positions and people with disabilities
JOB LEVELS

BLACK (A/C/I)

FOREIGN
NATIONALS

WHITE

GENDER

GRAND

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

Total

Executives

2

4

0

0

0

0

2

4

6

Senior
management

6

2

0

0

0

0

6

2

8

Middle
management

2

5

0

0

0

0

2

5

7

Operational

1

4

0

0

0

0

1

4

5

Support

4

5

0

0

0

0

4

5

9

Total
permanent

15

20

0

0

0

0

15

20

35

Temps and
interns

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

Grand total

15

21

0

0

0

0

15

21

35

Females with disabilities are not represented in the TEDA population on all levels.
Table 11: Number of approved positions, ﬁlled and vacant
BUSINESS UNIT

2014/15 APPROVED POSTS
AS PER THE STRUCTURE

NUMBER OF
FILLED POSTS

VACANT POSTS

Oﬃce of the CEO

7

4

3

Company Secretary

3

2

1

CFO

8

8

0

Corporate Services

13

9

4

Asset Management

6

0

6

Investment Promotion and
Funding

10

7

3

Internal Audit

2

0

2

Risk and Compliance

1

0

1

Projects Portfolio

10

3

7

Total

60

33

27
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4.2

HUMAN CAPITAL POLICIES

In this financial year, it was a priority to develop of human resources policies in order to
ensure effective management of human capital. Fourteen policies were approved in the
reporting period in order to ensure compliance with basic legal requirements regarding
human resources. Processes and systems have been developed to ensure consistent
implementation of activities within corporate services.
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4.3

DISCLOSURES

Disclosure of human resources in TEDA:
Table 12: Human resources – head count per unit
2014/15

2013/14

UNITS

NUMBER
OF POSTS

NUMBER
OF FILLED
POSTS

NUMBER
VACANCIES %
OF
VACANCIES

Chief
Executive
Officer

6

4

2

33%

Chief Financial
Officer

11

8

3

27%

Corporate
Affairs

13

9

4

Strategic
Partnerships

4

0

Asset
Management

6

Projecst
Officere

7

UNITS

Chief
Executive
Officer

NUMBER
OF POSTS

INTERVENTIO
NUMBER NUMBER
VACANCIES CHALLEN N/ACTION
OF FILLED OF
TO BE TAKEN
GES
%
VACANCIES
POSTS

7

4

3

42,8%

None

n/a

Chief Financial
Officer

8

8

0

0

None

n/a

30,7%

Corporate
Affairs

13

9

4

30,7%

None

n/a

4

100%

Strategic
Partnerships

3

3

3

100%

None

n/a

0

6

100%

Asset
Management

6

6

6

100%

None

n/ae

2

5

71%

Projecst
Officere

10

3

7

70%

None

n/a

10

9

3

30%

None

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

3

2

1

33%

None

60

35

25

Trade and
Investment

5

3

2

40%

Marketing &
Communication

7

6

1

14,3%

Legal
Service

3

3

0

0

TOTAL

62

35

27

Investment
Promotion
& Funding
Tourism &
Marketing
Legal
Service
TOTAL
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There were 62 positions on the previous organogram; there are currently 60 positions on the approved organogram.
There are 35 filled positions in TEDA. The Trade and Investment and the Marketing and Communications business units
were merged in the new approved organogram as Investment Promotion and Funding. There is a significant number of
Africans in TEDA. 97% of the total staff head count represents African employees. 60% of the staff are female, 34% are
African males, and 3% represents Indian males.
4.3.1Training and development
[Can the table be adjusted to accommodate the text?]
Table 13: Training
2013/14

Management

1

Type of
training

Smart Screen
Application

M
/
F

F

Employees in
Skills programmes
Learnership and other
post as at
30 June 13
short courses

34

0

2013/14

Other forms
of training

Smart Screen
Application

1

39

T
O
T
A
L

1

M
/
F

F

Skills
Employees in
Learnership programmes
post as at
and other
30 June 13
short courses

35

0

Company
Secretary
training/
Logistics
Management/
Chartered
Secretaries
Board Exam/
Microsoft Excel/
Telephone
Etiquette
/Smart Screen
Application

T
O
Other
T
forms
A
of training L

0

R
E
M
A
R
K
S

Training
was put
on hold
6 due to the
implementation of
OD project
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4.3.2 Management of leave
Table 14: Leave records

2 0 1 3 /1 4

TYPE OF
LEAVE

TOTAL
DAYS

O N S P E C IA L
A N D S IC K
LEAVE
(M E D IC A L
C E R T IF IC A T E
P R O V ID E D ,
DEATH
C E R T IF IC A T E
AND STUDY
L E A V E IN F O )

2 0 1 4 /1 5

DAYS

D E S C R IP T IO N

TOTAL
DAYS

300

N /A

664

O N S P E C IA L
A N D S IC K
LEAVE
(M E D IC A L
C E R T IF IC A T E
P R O V ID E D ,
DEATH
C E R T IF IC A T E
AND STUDY
L E A V E IN F O )

DAYS

A n n u a l lea ve

300

N /A

S p e c ia l
(s tu d y) le a ve

47

R e q u ired p roo f
p ro vid e d

47

N /A

70

R e q u ired p roo f
p ro vid e d

N /A

S ic k le a ve

175

R e q u ired p roo f
p ro vid e d

175

N /A

155

R e q u ired p roo f
p ro vid e d

N /A

In 2013/14, only 300 annual leave, 47 study leave and 175 sick leave days were utilised as opposed to 664 annual
leave, 70 study leave and 155 sick leaves utilised in 2014/2015. There was an active utilisation of leave in 2014/15,
more than in 2013/2014. This is due to the increased head count in 2015.
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Indicator

Baseline

2013/14 target

2013/14
actual

2014/15 target

2014/15 actual

Challenges

Comments
budget constraints.

Female staﬀ as % of
total staﬀ

n/a

n/a

60%

n/a

60%

No identiﬁed

Not all vacancies
were ﬁlled due to
budget constraints.

African female
managers as % of
senior management

n/a

n/a

27,95%

n/a

27,95%

No identiﬁed

Not all vacancies
were ﬁlled due to
budget constraints.
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4.4

COMPETENCY LEVELS OF FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN OFFICIALS

Table 16: Progress report on ﬁnancial competency development
Financial competency development: Progress report

Description

Total number of
oﬃcials employed
by Municipality
(Regulation 14(4)(a)
and (c)

Consolidated:
Competency
assessments
completed
(Regulation 14(4)(b)
and (d)

Consolidated: Total
number of oﬃcials
whose
performance
agreements
comply with
Regulation 16
(Regulation 14(4)(f)

Consolidated: Total
number of oﬃcials
that meet
prescribed
competency levels
(Regulation 14(4)(e)

Financial oﬃcials
Accounting Oﬃcer

1

Competency
assessment
completed

1

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

1

Competency
assessments not
completed

1

Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by the City
of Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.

Senior Finance
Manager

1

Competency
assessments not
completed

1

Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by City of
Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.

Any other ﬁnancial
oﬃcers

2

Competency
assessments not
completed

2

Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by City of
Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.

n/a

Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by City of
Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.

1

Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by City of
Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.

Supply Chain Management oﬃcials
Head of Supply
Chain Management
Unit

n/a

Supply Chain
Management senior
manager

1

Competency
assessments not
completed
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Financial competency development: Progress report
Consolidated:
Total number of
Competency
oﬃcials employed
assessments
by Municipality
completed
(Regulation 14(4)(a)
(Regulation 14(4)(b)
and (c)
and (d)

Consolidated: Total
number of oﬃcials
whose
performance
agreements
comply with
Regulation 16
(Regulation 14(4)(f)

Any other Supply
Chain Management
oﬃcials

2

2

TOTAL

8

Description

Competency
assessment not
completed

8
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Consolidated: Total
number of oﬃcials
that meet
prescribed
competency levels
(Regulation 14(4)(e)
Skills audit process
to determine
competency level as
facilitated by City of
Tshwane is not yet
ﬁnalised.
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Chapter 5
5.1 ANNEXURE A: Audited Financial Statement
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(Registration number 2006/019396/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

General Information
Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa
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Chief Executive Oﬃcer (CEO)

Mr SD Mogaladi

Board of Directors

Mr LD Mosoma (Chairperson
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Mr L Vutula (Chairperson until 12
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Auditors
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Ac counting Oﬃcer's Responsibilities and Approval
The accounting oﬃcer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) (M FMA) and the Companies Act
No.71 of 2008, as ammended, to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the
annual ﬁnancial statements and related ﬁnancial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting
oﬃcer to ensure that the annual ﬁnancial statements fairly present the state of aﬀairs of the municipal entity as at the end of the
ﬁnancial year and the results of its operations and cash ﬂows for the year ended 30 June 2015. The external auditors were
engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual ﬁnancial statements and they were given unrestricted access to all
ﬁnancial records and related data.
The annual ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the eﬀective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board.
The annual ﬁnancial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The accounting oﬃcer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal ﬁnancial control established by
the municipal entity and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting
oﬃcer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting oﬃcer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error
or deﬁcit in a cost eﬀective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly deﬁned
framework, eﬀective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These
controls are monitored throughout the municipal entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards
in ensuring the municipal entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.
The focus of risk management in the municipal entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of
risk across the municipal entity. While operating risks cannot be fully eliminated, the municipal entity endevours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.
The accounting oﬃcer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the ﬁnancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
ﬁnancial statements. However, any system of internal ﬁnancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deﬁcit.
The accounting oﬃcer has reviewed the municipal entity’s cash ﬂow forecast for the year ended 30 June 2015 and, in the light
of this review and the current ﬁnancial position and is satisﬁed that the entity has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipal entity's annual ﬁnancial
statements.
The annual ﬁnancial statements have not been audited by the municipal entity's external auditors in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2008 (Act No 71 of 2008).
The annual ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 56 to 108 which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board of directors and accounting oﬃcer on 30/11/2015 and signed by:

Mr SD Mogaladi
Accounting Oﬃcer
30 November 2015
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Director's Report
The directors submit their report for the period ended 30 June 2015 .
1.

Incorporation

The company was incorporated in South Africa on 23 June 2006 and obtained its certiﬁcate to commence business on the
same day.
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Director's Report
2.

Review of activities

Main business and operations
TEDA being a state owned entity that was established by the City of Tshwane as a sole owner, the operations of TEDA are
governed by the Companies Act ( Act 71 of 2008), Municipal systems Act ( Act 32 of 2000), as amended and the Local
Government : Municipal Finance Management Act ( MFMA) ( Act 53 of 2003) as amended and its regulations. The mandate
of TEDA has been outlined in the Service Delivery Agreement (SDA) between the entity and the CoT. The operations of
TEDA have been classiﬁed as follows post the recent organisational development exercise:
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Director's Report
a) Core business
• Projects Portfolio Management
• Property and Asset management
• Investment Promotion and Funding
b) Support functions
• Strategy and Performance Monitoring
• Financial Services
• Oﬃce of the Company Secretary
• Corporate Services
TEDA was wholly dependent on the funds allocation from the City in the year under review. However, there were measures
employed to ensure that a model for ﬁnancial sustainability is developed to guide in income generating initiatives in the
future. This will assist the entity in reducing its dependence on the City funding.
A reprioritisation exercise was undertaken to ensure funding of the core business. The entity ensured that the core business
needs are addressed in the new ﬁnancial year through the reprioritisation exercise.
The entity has come up with projects in 2014/15 and mostly these are at a feasibility study and will reach implementation
stage at diﬀerent times in the medium term. The challenge that needs to be overcome is the solicitation of funds from
external sources where internal funding is not available to fund these projects.

2.1

Important policy decisions and strategic issues facing the entity
• There is some desire shown by the City to assign major projects to TEDA to manage on its behalf. This
demonstrates conﬁdence on the perceived capabilities by the City on the entity. This in turn demands that TEDA
should be able to demonstrate the capacity to ﬁnd other innovative ways of delivering on these without increasing
employee costs.
• The strategic partnerships formed with funding institutions such as IFA Lethu and Royal Fields that operate within
the SMME sector is a wise move by the entity in its endeavour to expose SMMEs to development programmes
aimed at building their capacity and ability to increase their market share.
• The need to continuously provide capacity to the core business of TEDA will be a challenge in the short to medium
term; however, as mentioned above, other ways will be employed to ensure that the entity meets its obligations in
terms of the SDA with the CoT. TEDA is expected to also contribute to income earning opportunities which has
been a challenge in the 2014/15 ﬁnancial year. The response to this will be to enter into the short term projects
area and implement local economic development projects that will yield income earning opportunities much
sooner.

2.2

Comment on signiﬁcant events that have taken place during the year
•TEDA led an outward mission to the DRC in order to expose companies which participated in the Tshwane
Inaugural Exportes Awards to international markets. There will be continuous support given to these companies in
order to maintain their relevance in the export market.
• TEDA hosted a multi-sectoral Tshwane Inaugural Exporters Awards to acknowledge and recognise the role of the
Tshwane Exporting busine s community in growing the regional economy and creating employment opportunities.
• The Tshwane SMME fair was hosted by the entity with the aim of providing exposure to the SMME’s in the City on
the programmes available to build their capacity to contribute to the economy of the City .
• TEDA underwent an organisational development process to match the skills set of the employees with those
needed by the entity.

2.3

Comment on major projects undertaken or completed during the year
• A pre-feasibility study on the Tshwane Agro processing hub project has been completed. This is one of the major
projects to be undertaken by the entity and is expected to create more than 300 jobs with a gross value add of R1,
7billion over a ﬁve year period.

2.4

Information on predetermined objectives
• The strategic objectives were developed with related key performance areas and indicators using SMAR T
principles. Performance on the set targets was measured on a monthly, quarterly, mid-term and the overall annual
performance.
• The performance on the set indicators and targets has experienced an improvement in comparison to the previous
year. In the ﬁrst half of the year, some of the indicators were not funded hence the request to Council and
subsequent approval to revise the targets and include funded targets and indicators.
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Director's Report
• By the end of the year TEDA had achieved 24 Key Performance Indicators (KPI) out of a total of 28 KPI. In termsof
itscontribution to the SDBIP targets, TEDA did not perform well on “income earning opportunities facilitated by
TEDA” and has put measures in place to ensure that in 2015/16 this key target is addressed through
implementation of small scale projects and maximise its eﬀorts on investment attraction.
2.5

Policies Approved by the Board
• A total of 10 institutional policies were approved in the year under review. Additional policies are being developed
to ensure that TEDA subscribes fully to imperatives such as “triple bottom line” reporting in terms of Corporate
Governance frameworks.

2.6

Staﬃng
• The organisation currently has 35 permanent employees. There are ﬁve (5) executives, four (4) females and one
(1) male. The appointment of the CEO on a ﬁve (5) year ﬁxed term has been ﬁnalised with eﬀect from 01 March
2015.
• The organisation has all legislated Human Resources policies in place to ensure fair and transparent employment
practices in the workplace. All employees have signed performance agreements aligned to the Business Plan to
ensure performance is monitored and create a high performance culture.

3.

Going concern

At the time of preparation of the annual ﬁnancial statements for the period under review, the board members believed the
entity will be a going concern in the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt a going concern basis in the
preparation of these annual ﬁnancial statements. Refer to note 39 for details.
We d raw attention to the fact that as at 30 June 2015, the entity h ad accumulated surplus of ( R9,013,706: R7,641,513)
2015 and 2014 respectively.
4.

Subsequent events

Events after reporting date are presented in Note 40 of the annual ﬁnancial statements.
5.

Directors' interest in contracts

The Directors have declared that they do not have any personal interests in the contracts entered into by the entity .
6.

Board

The Annual General Meeting of 12 May 2015 appointed three new non-executive directors i.e. Prof. DL Mosoma (as new
Board Chairperson, Ms S Mzizi and Ms Z Mpungose).
The directors of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Name
Nationality
Mr LD Mosoma (Chairperson Appointed 12 May South African
2015)
Mr L Vutula (Chairperson until 12 May 2015)
South African
Ms RS Bahula- Ermias
South African
Mr H Gouvelis
South African
Ms LD Haskins
South African
Mr J Matsho
South African
Ms ZG Mpungose (Appointed 12 May 2015)
South African
Mr CR Mpyane
South African
Ms SP Mzizi (Appointed 12 May 2015)
South African
Ms NM Ntsinde
South African
Mr FK Sibanda
South African
Ms N Singh
South African
Mr JL Thubakgale
South African
Mr MW Yates
South African
Mr SD Mogaladi
South African
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Director's Report
7.

Corporate governance

General
The board i s committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all its activities. As part of this
commitments, the board subscribes to the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best
practice.
The entity c onﬁrms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and
Conduct ("the Code") laid out in the King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa (2010).
The salient features of the entity's adoption of the Code is outlined below:
Board of Directors
The board:
• retains full control over the entity, its plans and strategy;
• acknowledges its responsibilities as to the strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws and
regulations,eﬀective risk management and performance measurement, transparency and eﬀective communication
both internally and externally by the entity;
• is of a unitary structure comprising of: non-executive directors, all of whom are independent directors as deﬁned in
the Code;
• has established a Board directorship continuity programme.

Director Development
The entity has during the year under review provided corporate governance training to its Directors.
Board Committees
The Board has delegated certain functions to the following well-structured committees. All independent non-executive
directors serve on the committees except for the Chairperson of the Board.
Finance, Risk and Governance Committee
The committee comprises ﬁve non-executive directors and exercises oversight on the entity’s ﬁnance, corporate
governance compliance and risk related matters.
Projects Committee
The committee comprises ﬁve non-executive directors and exercises oversight on the planning, implementation and
management of projects in terms of the entity’s approved business plan.
Remuneration Committee
This committee comprises four non-executive directors and exercises oversight role on the entity’s human capital and
remuneration matters.
Social and Ethics Committee
The committee was established in terms of section 43 of the Companies Act Regulations 2011, and has ﬁve members, one
being a prescribed oﬃcer. This committee exercises its responsibilities as outlined in subsection (5) of the Regulations.
Trade and Investment Committee
The committee comprises four non-executive directors and exercises oversight on trade, investment promotion and
marketing within Tshwane.

53

TEDA ANNUAL REPORT
2014/15

Tshwane Economic Development Agency SOC Ltd
(Registration number 2006/019396/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

Director's Report
Chairperson and Chief Executive Oﬃcer
The Chairperson is a non-executive and independent director (as deﬁned by the Code).
The Chief Executive Oﬃcer is a executive director (as deﬁned by the Code).
The roles of Chairperson and Chief Executive are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual
has unfettered powers of discretion.
Remuneration
The upper limits of the remuneration of the Chief Executive Oﬃcer, and Executive managers, are determined by the Parent
entity, and the board will determine the remuneration within the above mentioned limits.
Audit and risk committee
• Audit Committee
The audit committee function is performed by the group audit and performance committee established by the City
of Tshwane for all its municipal entities.
• Risk Management Committee
The risk committee function is performed by the Group Risk Committee of the CoT and the Finance, Risk and Governance
Committee of TEDA.
Internal audit
The entity utilises the shared service provided by the City of Tshwane‘s group internal audit unit to perform internal audit
functions.
8.

Share Capital and Equity

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the entity during the year under review.
9.

Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid to shareholder during the year.
10. Secretary
The Company Secretary was appointed with eﬀect from 01 August 2013 and performs the functions as required in terms of
section 88 of the Companies Act, 2008.
11. Controlling entity
The entity is wholly owned by the City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality.
12. Auditors
The Auditor-General of South Africa will continue in oﬃce in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 71 of 2008,
as ammended and section 92 of the Municipal Finance Management Act.
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Company Secretary’s Certiﬁcation
Declaration by the company secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act
In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the company has lodged with the
Commissioner most of such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that such
returns are true, correct and up to date. And also do conﬁrm that the entity did not comply with Section 70(6) of the
Companies Act 71 of 2008 which states that every company must ﬁle a notice (CoR 39) within 10 business days after a
person becomes or ceases to be a director of the company, which has since been corrected.

Ms LV Mahaye
Company Secretary
Place of Signature
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2015

2014
Restated*

11
4
5
6
7

181,025
32,422
1,571,375
1,589,575
9,902,392

57,995
799,325
2,229,732
5,152,789

13,276,789

8,239,841

7,190,910
253,812
440,350

9,747,837
18,964
-

7,885,072

9,766,801

7,885,072
13,276,789
21,161,861

9,766,801
8,239,841
18,006,642

1,096,292
431,642
3,221,873
5,886,270
1,296,068

3,277,985
3,629,070
2,041,632
948,626

11,932,145

9,897,313

215,010
-

455,751
8,853

215,010

464,604

215,010
11,932,145
12,147,155

464,604
9,897,313
10,361,917

21,161,861
(12,147,155)
9,014,706

18,006,642
(10,361,917)
7,644,725

1,000
9,013,706

1,000
7,643,725

9,014,706

7,644,725

Assets
Current Assets
Operating lease asset
Receivables from exchange transactions
VAT receivable
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax

8
9
17

Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Normal Taxation
Operating lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions
Unspent Grant
Provisions for employee beneﬁts

10
11
13
15
14

Non-Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Deferred tax

11
17

Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets
Share Capital and Equity
Accumulated surplus

18

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand

Note(s) 2015

2014
Restated*

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of tender documents
Rental Income
Interest earned

19
19
19

29,518
3,137,770
404,759

4,250
601,970
176,095

3,572,047

782,315

46,727,237
131,579

59,495,206
-

46,858,816

59,495,206

(27,016,764)
(1,725,670)
(3,216,742)
(1,910,006)
(1,943,103)
(9,616)
(12,749,712)

(19,971,339)
(3,397,149)
(1,873,960)
(2,646,887)
(13,425,376)
(71,660)
(12,029,234)

Total expenditure

(48,571,613)

(53,415,605)

Total revenue
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Taxation
Surplus for the y ear

50,430,863
(48,571,613)
1,859,250
(489,269)
1,369,981

60,277,521
(53,415,605)
6,861,916
(1,972,685)
4,889,231

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue and other revenue
Grant revenue recognised
Sponsorship Income

20
20

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of Board Members
Depreciation and amortisation
Marketing, Trade and Investment
Projects
Loss on disposal of assets
General Expenses

21
22
23
25
24
27
26

28
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Share CapitalAccumulated
and Equity
surplus

Figures in Rand
Balance at 01 July 2013 as restated
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year as previously reported
Correction of prior year errors
Total changes
Balance at 01 July 2014 as restated
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
Total changes
Balance at 30 June 2015

58

Total
assets

net

1,000

2,754,493

2,755,493

-

5,008,929
(119,697)

5,008,929
(119,697)

-

4,889,231

4,889,231

1,000

7,643,725

7,644,725

-

1,369,981

1,369,981

-

1,369,981

1,369,981

1,000

9,013,706

9,014,706
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand

Note(s) 2015

2014
Restated*

Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Receipts
Transfers and Subsidies
Interest income
Rental income
Sale of tender documents
Sponsorship income

Payments
Compensation of Employees and Board fees
Goods and Services
Taxes on surpluses
VAT paid

10

Total receipts
Total payments
Net cash ﬂows from operating activities

29

50,571,875
416,292
3,619,433
29,518
131,579

47,500,000
157,181
4,250
-

54,768,697

47,661,431

(28,719,537)
(15,784,412)
(3,267,534)
(1,347,137)

(22,411,471)
(25,489,153)
-

(49,118,620)

(47,900,624)

54,768,697
(49,118,620)
5,650,077

47,661,431
(47,900,624)
(239,193)

(276,028)
(86,450)
(44,967)
(259,351)
(222,190)
(11,488)

(576,800)
(1,304,086)
(1,796,148)
(7,302)
(6,172,570)
-

(900,474)

(9,856,906)

-

(588,482)

4,749,603
5,152,789

(10,684,581)
15,837,370

9,902,392

5,152,789

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
8
8
8
9
8
8

Purchase of Oﬃce Equipment
Purchase of Computer Equipment
Purchase of Oﬃce Furniture and Fixtures
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Purchase of Leasehold Improvements
Purchase of Library material
Net cash ﬂows from investing activities
Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Repayment of shareholders loan
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

7

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget

Actual amounts Diﬀerence
Reference
on comparable between ﬁnal
basis
budget
and
actual

Figures in Rand
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Sale of tender documents
Rental income
Interest income - current
accounts
Total revenue from exchange
transactions

4,056,936
-

219,367

4,056,936
219,367

29,518
3,075,458
397,378

29,518 Note 18
(981,478)Note 18
178,011 Note 18

4,056,936

219,367

4,276,303

3,502,354

(773,949)

49,961,277

3,071,875

53,033,152

50,571,875

-

150,000

150,000

131,579

(18,421)

49,961,277

3,221,875

53,183,152

50,703,454

(2,479,698)

4,056,936

219,367

4,276,303

3,502,354

(773,949)

49,961,277

3,221,875

53,183,152

50,703,454

(2,479,698)

54,018,213

3,441,242

57,459,455

54,205,808

(3,253,647)

(29,252,594)
(2,190,522)

2,185,489
409,704

(27,067,105)
(1,780,818)

(25,720,519)
(1,559,819)

1,346,586 Note 32
220,999 Note 32

(1,899,242)
(2,000,000)
(17,428,055)
(1,247,800)

(679,950)
(4,880,062)
(491,898)
15,475

(2,579,192)
(6,880,062)
(17,919,953)
(1,232,325)

(993,824)
(1,070,712)
(11,826,444)
(853,469)

1,585,368
5,809,350
6,093,509
378,856

(54,018,213)

(3,441,242)

(57,459,455)

(42,024,787)

15,434,668

-

-

-

12,181,021
12,181,021
12,181,021
-

12,181,021
12,181,021
12,181,021
-

-

-

-

12,181,021

12,181,021

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Transfer revenue
City of Tshwane - Tranfers and
Adjusments
Sponsorship incomce
Total revenue from nonexchange transactions
'Total revenue from exchange
transactions'
'Total revenue from nonexchange transactions'
Total revenue
Expenditure
Employee remuneration
Remuneration of Board
Members
Marketing, Trade and Investment
Projects Expenditure
General Expenses
Capital Expenditure
Total expenditure

Surplus before taxation
Deﬁcit before taxation
Taxation
Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Figures in Rand

Final Budget Actual amounts Diﬀerence
on comparable between ﬁnal
basis
budget and
actual

Reconciliation
Basis diﬀerence
Taxation
Depreciation and Amortisation
Expense
Operating lease liability

(489,269)
(3,216,742)
(67,871)

Losses on asset disposal

(9,616)

Movement in provision

(347,442)

Adjust for current year trade and
other payables from exchange
transaction
Movement in Unspent Grant

(2,920,490)

Purchases of property,plant and
equipment
Movement in prepayments

853,469

(3,844,638)

(567,977)

Accrued income

13,465

Other non-cash adjustment on
expenses

(213,929)

Actual Amount in the
Statement of Financial
Performance

1,369,981
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Diﬀerence
on comparable between ﬁnal
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Operating lease asset
Increase in Receivables from
exchange transactions
VAT receivable
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax

Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets

560,000
3,788,368

(306,201)
-

253,799

181,025
32,422

181,025
(221,377)

3,788,368

1,571,375
1,589,575
9,902,392

1,571,375
1,589,575
6,114,024

4,348,368

(306,201)

4,042,167

13,276,789

9,234,622

9,500,000
2,900,000
-

(3,558,994)
(2,325,503)
-

5,941,006
574,497
-

7,190,910
253,812
440,350

1,249,904
(320,685)
440,350

12,400,000

(5,884,497)

6,515,503

7,885,072

1,369,569

(306,201)
(5,884,497)
(6,190,698)

4,042,167
6,515,503
10,557,670

13,276,789
7,885,072
21,161,861

9,234,622
1,369,569
10,604,191

4,348,368
12,400,000
16,748,368

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current tax payable
Operating lease liability
Payables from exchange
transactions
Unspent Grant
Provisions

2,050,000

200,000
200,000
-

200,000
200,000
2,050,000

1,096,292
431,642
3,221,873

896,292
231,642
1,171,873

4,200,000
-

(3,000,000)
600,000

1,200,000
600,000

5,886,270
1,296,068

4,686,270
696,068

6,250,000

(2,000,000)

4,250,000

11,932,145

7,682,145

Non-Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability

1,250,000

-

1,250,000

215,010

(1,034,990)

Total Liabilities

6,250,000
1,250,000
7,500,000

(2,000,000)
(2,000,000)

4,250,000
1,250,000
5,500,000

11,932,145
215,010
12,147,155

7,682,145
(1,034,990)
6,647,155

16,748,368
(7,500,000)
9,248,368

(6,190,698)
2,000,000
(4,190,698)

10,557,670
(5,500,000)
5,057,670

21,161,861
(12,147,155)
9,014,706

10,604,191
(6,647,155)
3,957,036

Net Assets Attributable to
Owners of Controlling Entity
Share Capital and Equity

7,500,000

(4,190,698)

3,309,302

1,000

Reserves
Accumulated surplus

1,748,368

-

1,748,368

9,013,706

Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets
Net Assets
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Figures in Rand
Total Net Assets

9,248,368

(4,190,698)
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Final Budget Actual amounts Diﬀerence
on comparable between ﬁnal
basis
budget and
actual
5,057,670

9,014,706

3,957,036

Reference
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Diﬀerence
on comparable between ﬁnal
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand
Cash Flow Statement
Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Receipts
Transfers and Subsidies
Rental income
Sale of tender documents
Interest income
Sponsorship income

Payments
Compensation of employees and
Board fees
Goods and services
Taxes on surpluses
VAT paid

Total receipts
Total payments
Net cash ﬂows from operating
activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash ﬂows from investing
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the y ear

47,500,000
74,000
-

5,533,152
3,983,136
-

53,033,152
3,983,136
74,000
-

50,571,875
3,619,433
29,518
416,292
131,579

(2,461,277)
(363,703)
29,518
342,292
131,579

47,574,000

9,516,288

57,090,288

54,768,697

(2,321,591)

(36,475,000)

5,032,000

(31,443,000)

(28,719,591)

2,723,409

(20,604,617)
-

(9,098,413)
(3,071,875)
(1,500,000)

(29,703,030)
(3,071,875)
(1,500,000)

(15,980,017)
(3,071,875)
(1,347,137)

13,723,013
152,863

(57,079,617)

(8,638,288)

(65,717,905)

(49,118,620)

16,599,285

47,574,000
(57,079,617)
(9,505,617)

9,516,288
(8,638,288)
878,000

57,090,288
(65,717,905)
(8,627,617)

54,768,697
(49,118,620)
5,650,077

(2,321,591)
16,599,285
14,277,694

(150,000)

(518,000)

(668,000)

(641,123)

26,877

(200,000)

(360,000)

(560,000)

(259,351)

300,649

(350,000)

(878,000)

(1,228,000)

(900,474)

327,526

(9,855,617)

-

(9,855,617)

4,749,603

14,605,220

13,644,185

-

13,644,185

5,152,789

(8,491,396)

3,788,568

-

3,788,568

9,902,392

6,113,824
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Ac counting Policies
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual ﬁnancial statements h ave been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) .
These annual ﬁnancial statements h ave been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless speciﬁed otherwise. They are presented in South African
Rand.
A summary of the signiﬁcant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
ﬁnancial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency
These annual ﬁnancial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.
1.2 Going concern assumption
These annual ﬁnancial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.3 Signiﬁcant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual ﬁnancial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that aﬀect the
amounts represented in the Annual ﬁnancial statements and related disclosures. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signiﬁcant to the annual ﬁnancial statements are
disclosed below.
Trade receivables / Held to maturity

investments and/or loans and receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at each statement of ﬁnancial position
date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of ﬁnancial performance, the entity
makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
ﬂows from a ﬁnancial asset. The entity assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deﬁcit, the entity makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash ﬂows from a ﬁnancial
asset. Each receivable is reviewed individually at year end.
Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
ﬂows at the current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar ﬁnancial instruments. The carrying amount of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximated their fair values due to
the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.
Impairment testing
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
should be recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial performance.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosures
of these estimates of provisions are included in note 14 - Provisions.
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Ac counting Policies
1.3 Signiﬁcant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The entity recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the ﬁnal tax outcome of these matters is diﬀerent from the amounts that were initially recorded, such diﬀerences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The entity recognises the net future tax beneﬁt related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the
deductible temporary diﬀerences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets requires the entity to make signiﬁcant estimates related to ex pectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
taxable income are based on forecast cash ﬂows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each
jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash ﬂows and taxable income diﬀer signiﬁcantly from estimates, the ability of the entity
to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the statement of ﬁnancial position date could be impacted.
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. The entity establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and diﬀering interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.
Such diﬀerences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective company’s domicile. As the Company assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash outﬂow with
respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable surplus will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Signiﬁcant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable surplus together with future tax planning strategies.
Eﬀective interest rate
The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash ﬂows.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deﬁcit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the diﬀerence between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash ﬂows discounted at the eﬀective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
Property , plant and equipment
The entity’s management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment.
These assessments are made on an Annual basis and use historical evidence and current economic factors to estimate the
values. Administrative computer equipment, oﬃce furniture and equipment, exhibits and motor vehicles are not
componentised. These assets do not have signiﬁcant parts that are considered to have an estimated useful life diﬀerent to
the estimated useful life of the asset as a whole.
1.4 Property , Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic beneﬁts or service potential associated with the item will ﬂow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment were initially measured at cost.
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1.4 Property , Plant and Equipment (continued)
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Furniture and ﬁxtures
Motor vehicles
Oﬃce equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Library material

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

3 -16 years
5 years
5 -8 years
3 years
3 years
5 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
date. If the expectations diﬀer from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is signiﬁcant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.
Items of entity are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic beneﬁts or service
potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deﬁcit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the diﬀerence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. Gains shall
not be classiﬁed as revenue.
Assets which the agency holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available for sale. These assets are not
accounted for as non current assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash
ﬂows on these assets are included in cash ﬂows from operating activities in the entity.
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1.5 Intangible assets
An asset is identiﬁed as an intangible asset when it:
•
is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or
•
arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate
from TEDA or from other rights and obligations.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•
it is probable that the expected future economic beneﬁts or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
ﬂow to the TEDA; and
•
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
An intangible asset acquired through a non exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
•
it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
•
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
•
there is an ability to use or sell it.
•
it will generate probable future economic beneﬁts or service potential.
•
there are available technical, ﬁnancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asset.
•
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indeﬁnite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inﬂows or service potential.
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis
over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a ﬁnite useful life after it was classiﬁed as indeﬁnite is an indicator
that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is
amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised
as intangible assets
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software

Useful life
3 years

Intangible assets are derecognised: when no future economic beneﬁts or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal. The gain or loss is the diﬀerence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is
recognised in surplus or deﬁcit when the asset is derecognised.
1.6 Key management personnel
The key management of TEDA refers to the Chief Executive Oﬃcer (CEO), Chief Financial Oﬃcer (CFO) and Executive
Managers.
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1.7 Financial instruments
A ﬁnancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a ﬁnancial asset of one entity and a ﬁnancial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a ﬁnancial asset or ﬁnancial liability is the amount at which the ﬁnancial asset or ﬁnancial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the eﬀective
interest method of any diﬀerence between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibles.
A ﬁnancial asset is:
•
cash;
•
a residual interest of another entity; or
•
a contractual right to:
-receive cash or another ﬁnancial asset from another entity; or
-exchange ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable
to the entity.
A ﬁnancial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
•
deliver cash or another ﬁnancial asset to another entity; or
•
exchange ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity .
Financial instruments at fair value comprise ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities that are instruments held for trading. A
ﬁnancial instrument is held for trading if:
•
it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; or
•
on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identiﬁed ﬁnancial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term proﬁt taking;
•
non derivative ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities with ﬁxed or determinable payments that are designated at fair
value at initial recognition; and
•
ﬁnancial instruments that do not meet the deﬁnition of ﬁnancial instruments at amortised cost or ﬁnancial
instruments at cost.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised ﬁnancial asset or ﬁnancial liability from an entity’s statement of
ﬁnancial position.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative ﬁnancial assets or non-derivative ﬁnancial liabilities that have
ﬁxed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
are held for trading.
Classiﬁcation
The entity has the following types of ﬁnancial assets (classes and category) as reﬂected on the face of the statement of
ﬁnancial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Cash and cash equivalent
Receivable from exchange transactions

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of ﬁnancial liabilities (classes and category) as reﬂected on the face of the statement of
ﬁnancial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Payables from Exchange transaction

Category
Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a ﬁnancial asset or a ﬁnancial liability in its statement of ﬁnancial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Transaction costs are recognised as part of the cost of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments
are measured as set out above.
Subsequent measurement of ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities
The entity measures all ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
Financial instruments at amortised cost.
All ﬁnancial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review .
Reclassiﬁcation
The entity does not reclassify a ﬁnancial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassiﬁcation.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity
reclassiﬁes the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes the cost.
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassiﬁes the instrument
from cost to fair value.
Gains and losses
For ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deﬁcit when the ﬁnancial asset or ﬁnancial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectibility of ﬁnancial assets
The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a ﬁnancial asset or group
of ﬁnancial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on ﬁnancial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the diﬀerence between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash ﬂows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the ﬁnancial asset’s original
eﬀective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the ﬁnancial asset that exceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises a ﬁnancial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash ﬂows from the ﬁnancial asset expire, are settled or waived;
the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the ﬁnancial asset;
or
the entity, despite having retained some signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership of the ﬁnancial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
derecognise the asset; and
recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer .
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any diﬀerence between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deﬁcit in the period of the transfer.
If the entity t ransfers a ﬁnancial asset in a transfer that qualiﬁes for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the ﬁnancial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger ﬁnancial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a ﬁnancial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a
new ﬁnancial asset or assuming a new ﬁnancial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new ﬁnancial asset,
ﬁnancial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a ﬁnancial asset in its entirety, the diﬀerence between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit.
If the transferred asset is part of a larger ﬁnancial asset and the part transferred qualiﬁes for derecognition in its entirety , the
previous carrying amount of the larger ﬁnancial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The diﬀerence between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deﬁcit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity h as retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity c ontinue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
ﬁnancial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the ﬁnancial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and
the associated expenses are oﬀset.
Financial liabilities
The entity r emoves a ﬁnancial liability (or a part of a ﬁnancial liability) from its statement of ﬁnancial position w hen it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation speciﬁed in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially diﬀerent terms is accounted for
as having extinguished the original ﬁnancial liability and a new ﬁnancial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial
modiﬁcation of the terms of an existing ﬁnancial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
ﬁnancial liability and having recognised a new ﬁnancial liability.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
The diﬀerence between the carrying amount of a ﬁnancial liability (or part of a ﬁnancial liability) extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in surplus o r deﬁcit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity b y way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers).
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial risk management
Overview
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of ﬁnancial instruments:
•
Credit risk;
•
Liquidity risk; and
•
Interest rate risk.
This note presents information about the entity’s exposure to each of the above risks, the entity’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the entity’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these ﬁnancial statements.The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the entity’s risk management framework. The entity’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the entity, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reﬂect changes in market conditions and the entity’s
activities. The entity aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of ﬁnancial loss to the TEDA if a customer or counterparty to a ﬁnancial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the TEDA’s receivables from customers.
Potential concentrations of credit risk consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents.
Deposits
TEDA limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations by only dealing with well-established
ﬁnancial institutions of high quality credit standing as approved by the National Treasury.
The credit qualities of counterparties are also reviewed on a continuous basis by the National Treasury.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that TEDA will not be able to meet its ﬁnancial obligations as they fall due.
The entity’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have suﬃcient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the entity’s reputation.
The entity receives government grants every year based on budget requirements.
Interest rate risk
TEDA has adopted a policy of ensuring that the entity’s income and operating cash ﬂows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates, due to the underlying nature of the business. TEDA has no interest bearing assets or
liabilities. Accordingly the entity’s income and expenses are substantially independent of changes in markets rates of
interest. As a result, changes in the market rate of interest have a negligible impact on the ﬁnancial performance of the
entity.
Capital management
TEDA has developed systems and internal controls that are suﬃcient and eﬀective in maintaining eﬃcient levels of both
components of working capital, current assets and current liabilities. The working capital management ensures that TEDA
has suﬃcient cash ﬂow in order to meet its short-term debt obligations and operating expenses.
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1.8 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the
current and prior periods are measured at the amount ex pected to be paid to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary diﬀerences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, aﬀects neither
accounting surplus nor taxable proﬁt (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary diﬀerences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
surplus will be available against which the deductible temporary diﬀerence can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not
recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction,
aﬀects neither accounting surplus nor taxable proﬁt (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable surplus will be available against which the unused tax can be utilised.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary diﬀerences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for ﬁnancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary diﬀerences, except:
•
When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, aﬀects neither the accounting surplus nor
taxable surplus or deﬁcit
•
In respect of taxable temporary diﬀerences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary diﬀerences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary diﬀerences will not reverse in the foreseeable future
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that suﬃcient taxable surplus will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable surplus will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are oﬀset if a legally enforceable right exists to set oﬀ current tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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1.8 Tax (continued)
Tax expenses and VAT
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in surplus or deﬁcit for the period, except
to the extent that the tax arises from:
a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a diﬀerent period, to net assets; or
a business combination.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to net assets if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged,
in the same or a diﬀerent period, to net assets.
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT except:
•
Where the VAT incurred on the purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item applicable;
and
•
Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to, the tax ation authority is reported separate from other receivables or
payables in the annual statements of ﬁnancial position..
1.9 Leases
A lease is classiﬁed as a ﬁnance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classiﬁed as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term .
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The aggregate beneﬁt of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of ﬁnancial performance .
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is included in the statement of ﬁnancial position based on
the natureof the asset.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The diﬀerence
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.
All leases that TEDA enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the underlying asset, are classiﬁed as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged
against revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
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1.10 Inventories (continued)
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories c omprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
speciﬁc projects is assigned using speciﬁc identiﬁcation of the individual costs.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories r ecognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
As at 30 June 2015 the entity does not have inventories.
1.11 Prepay ments
In the case of comprehensive and/or medium and long-term contracts, advance payments are negotiated with customers
and suppliers of the entity. These funds are paid by the entity to secure the right of use of the goods and/or services as
agreed in the contract. Advance payments received are recognised as a current liability for an amount that is estimated to
be settled within one year from reporting date and as a non-current liability for the amount to be settled after one year from
reporting date. Advance payments made are recognised as a current assets for an amount (of an expected beneﬁt) that is
estimated to be realised within one year from reporting date and as a non-current assets for the amount (of an expected
beneﬁt) to be realised after one year from reporting date.
Subsequently advance payments are expensed upon receipt of an agreed goods and/ or service, and in the case of
advance receipts are recognised as revenue when the entity has delivered as agreed in the annual statement of ﬁnancial
performance.
1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a proﬁt-orientated entity, it generates a commercial
return.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic beneﬁts or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic beneﬁts or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial position a fter deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identiﬁable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inﬂows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inﬂows from
other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, ex cluding ﬁnance costs and income
tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.
Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow:
1.13 Share Capital and Equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity a fter deducting all of its
liabilities.
1.14 Employ ee beneﬁts
Short-term employ ee beneﬁts
Short-term employee beneﬁt obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or proﬁt-sharing plans if the entity
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Post-employ ment beneﬁts : Deﬁned beneﬁt plans
These post-employment beneﬁt plans other than deﬁned contribution plans.
Deﬁned beneﬁt plans may be unfunded, or they may be wholly or partly funded by contributions by an entity , and sometimes
its employees, into an entity, or fund, that is legally separate from the reporting entity and from which the employee beneﬁts
are paid. The payment of funded beneﬁts when they fall due depends not only on the ﬁnancial position and the investment
performance of the fund but also on an entity‘s ability (and willingness) to make good any shortfall in the fund‘s assets.
Therefore, the entity is, in substance, underwriting the actuarial and investment risks associated with the plan.
TEDA does not participate in any deﬁned beneﬁt plan as at 30 June 2015.
Medical beneﬁts
The entity provides medical beneﬁts for its employees through deﬁned contribution plans. The entity has no further payment
once contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee beneﬁt expenses in proﬁt or loss in the
periods during which the services are rendered by the employees.
Post-employment beneﬁts: Deﬁned contribution plans
Deﬁned contribution plans are post-employment beneﬁt plans under which an entity pays ﬁxed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold suﬃcient
assets to pay all employee beneﬁts relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity d uring a reporting period, the entity r ecognise the contribution
payable to a deﬁned contribution plan in exchange for that service:
as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and
as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an
asset.
Where contributions to a deﬁned contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reﬂects the time
value of money. The currency and term of the ﬁnancial instrument selected to reﬂect the time value of money is consistent
with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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1.14 Employ ee beneﬁts (continued)
Post-employ ment beneﬁts: Deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Deﬁned beneﬁt plans are post-employment beneﬁt plans other than deﬁned contribution plans.
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the eﬀects of diﬀerences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the eﬀects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its deﬁned
beneﬁt liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deﬁcit in the reporting period in which they occur .
Assets held by a long-term employee beneﬁt fund are assets (other than non-transferable ﬁnancial instruments issued by
the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to
pay or fund employee beneﬁts and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee beneﬁts, are not available to the
reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
the remaining assets of the fund are suﬃcient to meet all the related employee beneﬁt obligations of the plan or
the reporting entity; or
the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee beneﬁts already paid.
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period.
Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a deﬁned beneﬁt obligation which arises because the
beneﬁts are one period closer to settlement.
Past service cost is the change in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment beneﬁts or other long-term
employee beneﬁts. Past service cost may be either positive (when beneﬁts are introduced or changed so that the present
value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation increases) or negative (when existing beneﬁts are changed so that the present value
of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation decreases). In measuring its deﬁned beneﬁt liability the entity recognise past service cost
as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.
Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee beneﬁt fund and qualifying insurance policies.
The present value of a deﬁned beneﬁt obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.
The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets,
together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other
than those included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation) and less any tax payable
by the plan itself.
The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a deﬁned beneﬁt plan, but also for any
constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive
obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee beneﬁts. An ex ample of a constructive obligation
is where a change in the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.
The amount recognised as a deﬁned beneﬁt liability is the net total of the following amounts:
the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation at the reporting date;
minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled
directly;
plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement
The amount determined as a deﬁned beneﬁt liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure the resulting asset at
the lower of:
the amount determined above; and
the present value of any economic beneﬁts available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic beneﬁts is determined using a discount rate which
reﬂects the time value of money.
Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit.
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1.14 Employ ee beneﬁts (continued)
Post-employ ment beneﬁts: Deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Deﬁned beneﬁt plans are post-employment beneﬁt plans other than deﬁned contribution plans.
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the eﬀects of diﬀerences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the eﬀects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its deﬁned
beneﬁt liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deﬁcit in the reporting period in which they occur .
Assets held by a long-term employee beneﬁt fund are assets (other than non-transferable ﬁnancial instruments issued by
the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to
pay or fund employee beneﬁts and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee beneﬁts, are not available to the
reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
the remaining assets of the fund are suﬃcient to meet all the related employee beneﬁt obligations of the plan or
the reporting entity; or
the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee beneﬁts already paid.
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period.
Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a deﬁned beneﬁt obligation which arises because the
beneﬁts are one period closer to settlement.
Past service cost is the change in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment beneﬁts or other long-term
employee beneﬁts. Past service cost may be either positive (when beneﬁts are introduced or changed so that the present
value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation increases) or negative (when existing beneﬁts are changed so that the present value
of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation decreases). In measuring its deﬁned beneﬁt liability the entity recognise past service cost
as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.
Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee beneﬁt fund and qualifying insurance policies.
The present value of a deﬁned beneﬁt obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.
The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets,
together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other
than those included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation) and less any tax payable
by the plan itself.
The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a deﬁned beneﬁt plan, but also for any
constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive
obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee beneﬁts. An ex ample of a constructive obligation
is where a change in the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.
The amount recognised as a deﬁned beneﬁt liability is the net total of the following amounts:
the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation at the reporting date;
minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled
directly;
plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement
The amount determined as a deﬁned beneﬁt liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure the resulting asset at
the lower of:
the amount determined above; and
the present value of any economic beneﬁts available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic beneﬁts is determined using a discount rate which
reﬂects the time value of money.
Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deﬁcit.
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1.14 Employ ee beneﬁts (continued)
The entity d etermine the present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with suﬃcient
regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual ﬁnancial statements do not diﬀer materially from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.
The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deﬁcit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
current service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
actuarial gains and losses;
past service cost;
the eﬀect of any curtailments or settlements; and
the eﬀect of applying the limit on a deﬁned beneﬁt asset (negative deﬁned beneﬁt liability).
The entity does not participate in any deﬁned beneﬁts plan as at 30 June 2015.
Bonus plans
The entity recognises a provision for performance bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation as a result of services received from the employee and the obligation can be
measured reliably.
The entity also recognises a provision for bonuses (13th Cheque) for employees who have structured their salaries as such.

Leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to Annual leave are recognised when they accrue. An accrual is raised for the estimated liability for
Annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. The related ex pense is recognised as
employee beneﬁt expenses in proﬁt or loss.

Termination beneﬁts
The entity recognises termination beneﬁts as a liability and an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed to either:
terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
provide termination beneﬁts as a result of an oﬀer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy .
The entity is demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]:
the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
the termination beneﬁts for each job classiﬁcation or function; and
the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that material
changes to the plan are not likely.
Where termination beneﬁts fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate
discount rate. The rate used to discount the beneﬁt reﬂects the time value of money. The currency and term of the ﬁnancial
instrument selected to reﬂect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the beneﬁt.
In the case of an oﬀer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination beneﬁts shall be based
on the number of employees expected to accept the oﬀer.
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1.15 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the ex penditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outﬂow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outﬂow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reﬂect the current best estimate. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be incurred to settle the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reﬂect the passage of time. This
increase isrecognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 44.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be conﬁrmed only by the
occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the TEDA.
A contingent liability is:
*
a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conﬁrmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality;
* a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:- it is not probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation;
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with suﬃcient reliability.
1.16 Commitments
Commitments are legal obligations to undertake in a given way, at a given time in the future. Usually commitments refer to
the requirement for parties to a futures contract to make or receive delivery of the underlying commodities on the ex piration
date of the contract or through a valid purchase order.
1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inﬂow of economic beneﬁts or service potential during the reporting period when those inﬂows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.
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1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisﬁed:
the entity has transferred to the purchaser the signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
eﬀective control over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic beneﬁts or service potential associated with the transaction will ﬂow to the entity;
and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably .
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisﬁed:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic beneﬁts or service potential associated with the transaction will ﬂow to the
entity;
•
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
•
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably .
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a speciﬁed time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the speciﬁed time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a speciﬁc act is much more signiﬁcant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the signiﬁcant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by total services to be performed.
1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity
either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Recognition
An inﬂow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the
extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inﬂow. As the entity satisﬁes a present obligation recognised
as a liability in respect of an inﬂow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the
carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
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1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue.
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisﬁed, the amount of the
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
The transfer from City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality is recognised when it is probable that future economic beneﬁts
will ﬂow to TEDA and when the amount can be measured reliably. A transfer is recognised as revenue to the extent that
there is no further obligation arising from the receipt of transfer payment.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic beneﬁts or service potential
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as speciﬁed or future economic beneﬁts or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
Sponsorships, gifts and donations, including goods in-kind
Sponsrships,gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the
future economic beneﬁts or service potential will ﬂow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
1.19 Investment income
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the Statement
of Financial Performance, using the eﬀective interest method.
1.20 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use of sale.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.21 Comparative ﬁgures
Prior y ear comparatives .
When the presentation or classiﬁcation of items in the Annual ﬁnancial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are also reclassiﬁed and restated, unless such comparative reclassiﬁcation and / or restatement is not required by
a Standard of GRAP.
The nature and reason for such reclassiﬁcations and restatements are also disclosed.
Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identiﬁed in the current year, the correction is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly .
Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is
practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
The presentation and classiﬁcation of items in the current year is not consistent with prior periods, for a detai disclosure
refer to the comparative of ﬁgures note.
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1.22 Oﬀset
Where a legally enforceable right of oﬀset exists for recognised ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities, and there is, an
intention to settle the liability and realise the asset simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis, all related ﬁnancial eﬀects are
oﬀset.
1.23 Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
-Overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
- Expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance
with the purpose of the main division.
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of ﬁnancial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classiﬁed in accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of ﬁnancial performance.
Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or not in
accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including the Municipal Finance Management Act, the State
Tender Board Act, or any regulations made in terms of this act, or any provincial legislation providing for procurement
procedures in that provincial government.
Irregular expenditure is treated as expenditure in the Statement of ﬁnancial performance after approval per the
departmental delegations.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous ﬁnancial year and is only condoned in the following ﬁnancial year,
the register and the disclosure note to the ﬁnancial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure must be recovered from the responsible oﬃcial (a debtor account
should be raised), or the vote if the responsible oﬃcial cannot be determined. I t is treated as current assets in the
statement of ﬁnancial position until such expenditure is recovered from the responsible oﬃcial or funded from future
revenue.
1.24 Budget information
TEDA is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of transfers from the City of Tshwane, which is given eﬀect through
authorising legislation or similar.
General purpose ﬁnancial reporting by entity s hall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classiﬁcation linked to performance outcome
objectives.
The approved budget covers the ﬁscal period from 2014/07/01 to 2015/06/30.
The Statement of comparative and actual information has been included in the annual ﬁnancial statements a s the
recommended disclosure when the annual ﬁnancial statements a nd the budget are on the same basis of accounting as
determined by National Treasury.
The annual ﬁnancial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between
the statement of ﬁnancial performance and the budget have been included in the annual ﬁnancial statements . Refer to note
33 & 34.
Comparative information is not required.
1.25 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise signiﬁcant
inﬂuence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.
TEDA consider the parent municpality (CoT) and its entities as related parties.
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1.25 Related parties (continued)
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity , including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform
such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be ex pected to inﬂuence, or
be inﬂuenced by, management in their dealings with the entity.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.26 Prior y ear errors
Prior year errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, an entity’s ﬁnancial statements for one or more prior periods
arising from failure to use or the misuse of reliable information that was available when the ﬁnancial statements for that
period were issued, and could have been reasonably expected to be taken into account in those ﬁnancial statements.
All prior year errors are corrected retrospectively to the earliest period practicable. Comparative amounts for prior years in
which the error occurred are restated.
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Figures in Rand
2.

2015

2014

New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and Interpretations early adopted
The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:
GRAP 20: Related parties
The objective of this standard i s to ensure that a reporting entity’s annual ﬁnancial statements c ontain the disclosures
necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its ﬁnancial position and surplus or deﬁcit may have been aﬀected by the
existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.
An entity that prepares and presents ﬁnancial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to
as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in:
identifying related party relationships and transactions;
identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties;
identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
determining the disclosures to be made about those items.
This standard r equires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including
commitments, in the consolidated and separate ﬁnancial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard
of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard a lso applies to individual annual ﬁnancial
statements.
Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related
parties may aﬀect users’ assessments of the ﬁnancial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to
deliver agreed services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures
that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties.
The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or
exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint
control. As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity:
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person:
has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
has signiﬁcant inﬂuence over the reporting entity;
is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.
An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled
entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
an economic entity of which the other entity is a member);
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
the entity is a post-employment beneﬁt plan for the beneﬁt of employees of either the entity or an entity
related to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity;
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identiﬁed in (a); and
a person identiﬁed in (a)(i) has signiﬁcant inﬂuence over that entity or is a member of the management of
that entity (or its controlling entity).
The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
The standard elaborates on the deﬁnitions and identiﬁcation of:
Close member of the family of a person;
Management;
Related parties;
Remuneration; and
Signiﬁcant inﬂuence
The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of: Control;
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)
Related party transactions; and
Remuneration of management

The eﬀective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2016.
The entity has early adopted the standard and its disclosure requirements.
The impact of the standard is not material.
2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not y et eﬀective
The entity h as not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2015 or later periods:
GRAP108: Statutory Receivables
The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of statutory receivables.
It furthermore covers: Deﬁnitions, recognition, derecognition,
provisions, as well as the eﬀective date.

measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional

The eﬀective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the ﬁrst time when the Minister set the eﬀective date for the standard.
The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
2.3 Standards and interpretations not y

et eﬀective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2015 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:
GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public
sector entity.
It furthermore covers: Deﬁnitions, recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and
measurement of liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and
disclosure, transitional provisions, as well as the eﬀective date.
The eﬀective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations.
The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Signiﬁcant Residual Interest in an Asset
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered into a service
concession arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneﬁcial entitlement or otherwise, a signiﬁcant residual
interest in a service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease.
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or
arrangements.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement between a grantor and an operator in which the operator
uses the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the grantor for a speciﬁed period of time.
The operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through
payments, or through receiving a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the
operator is given access to another revenue-generating asset of the grantor for its use.
Before the grantor can recognise a service concession asset in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service
Concession Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP need to be met. In some service concession arrangements, the grantor only controls the residual interest in the
service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in
terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor.
A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation
and the right to receive a signiﬁcant interest in a service concession asset.
The eﬀective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations.
The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards of GRAP
The objective of this Directive is to permit an entity to change its measurement bases following the initial adoption of
Standards of GRAP. The change is based on the principles in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. This Directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
In applying paragraph 13(b) of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
this Directive allows an entity, that has initially adopted the fair value model for investment property or the revaluation model
for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets or heritage assets, to change its accounting policy on a once-oﬀ basis
to the cost model when the entity elects to change its accounting policy following the initial adoption of these Standards of
GRAP. The once-oﬀ change will be allowed when the entity made an inappropriate accounting policy choice on the initial
adoption of the Standards of GRAP.
Subsequent to the application of this Directive, an entity will be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods
subject to it meeting the requirements in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.
The eﬀective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2016.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations.
The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
3.

Risk management

Financial risk management
The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of ﬁnancial risks: credit risk and liquidity risk.
Information about TEDA’s exposure to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks
are disclosed in the Accounting policies. The quantitative disclosure is provided in this note.

88

TEDA ANNUAL REPORT
2014/15

Tshwane Economic Development Agency SOC Ltd
(Registration number 2006/019396/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
3.

2015

2014

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its ﬁnancial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
`

Financial instrument
Trade and Other Receivables
Cash and cash Equivalents

2015
32,422
9,902,392

2014
799,325
5,152,789

At 30 June 2015, there is no signiﬁcant concentration of credit risk that had not been adequately provided for .
No security is held against Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suﬃcient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses,the entity m aintains ﬂexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed
credit lines.
Cash ﬂow forecasts are prepared and adequately monitored.
The table below analyses the entity’s non-derivative ﬁnancial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of ﬁnancial position to the contractual maturity date. The
amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash ﬂows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not signiﬁcant.
At 30 June 2015
From exchange transactions
At 30 June 2014
From exchange transactions

Less than 1
year
3,221,873

Between 1
and 2 y ears

Less than 1
year
3,629,072

Between 1
and 2 y ears

Between 2
and 5 y ears
-

Over 5 y ears
-

Between 2
and 5 y ears
-

Over 5 y ears

-

-

No ﬁnancial guarantee contracts were issued by the entity and derivative ﬁnanacial liabilities as at the reporting date.
4.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Board Members
Employees
Interest Income Accrued
Rental Income
SARS (PAYE credit)

89

18,104
7,382
6,936
-

34,094
273
18,914
543,975
202,069

32,422

799,325
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5.

2015

2014

VAT receivable

VAT Receivable/Credit

1,571,375

-

VAT receivable is calculated at the standard rate of 14% on all qualiﬁying goods and services delivered to/by TEDA.
VAT is calculated on all qualiﬁying goods and services delivered to/by TEDA on an invoice basis and on a 2 month(s) tax
period in odd months.
6.

Prepay ments

Prepayments

1,589,575

2,229,732

Prepaid expenses relates to funds paid in advance to CSIR to secure a venue for hosting Tshwane International Trade and
Infrastructure Investment Conference (TITIIC) planned to be held in May 2015 amongst others . The conference has since
been postponed to early 2016.
7.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Bank balances*
Short-term deposits

2,318
201,758
9,698,316

436
5,152,353
-

9,902,392

5,152,789

*The entity has a current and salaries bank accounts with Standard Bank which is used to meet the entities obligations. The
entity has a short-term deposit account with Investec Bank.
The total amount of undrawn facilities available for future operating activities and
commitments

9,902,392

5,152,789

9,902,392

5,152,789

The entity had the following bank accounts
`

Account number / description
Standard Bank - Cheque
Account - Primary Account 410791830
Standard Bank - Cheque
Account - Salaries Account 011057491
Investec Bank- Investment
Account-50009061311
Total

Bank statement balances
Cash book balances
30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
195,808
3,426,693
15,834,405
195,808
3,426,693
15,837,370

5,950

1,725,660

-

5,950

1,725,660

-

9,698,316

-

-

9,698,316

-

-

9,900,074

5,152,353

15,834,405

9,900,074

5,152,353

15,837,370
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8.

2015

2014

Property , Plant and Equipment
2015
Cost

Furniture and ﬁxtures
Motor vehicles
Oﬃce equipment
Computer Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Library material
Total
Reconciliation of property

Accumulated Carry ing value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Cost

Accumulated Carry ing value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

1,843,912
1,067,708
1,209,890
1,713,531
6,394,759
11,488

(236,727)
(430,918)
(205,736)
(851,916)
(3,324,596)
(485)

1,607,185
636,790
1,004,154
861,615
3,070,163
11,003

1,798,945
1,067,708
933,863
1,637,148
6,172,569
-

(55,551)
(217,377)
(75,995)
(307,265)
(1,206,208)
-

1,743,394
850,331
857,868
1,329,883
4,966,361
-

12,241,288

(5,050,378)

7,190,910

11,610,233

(1,862,396)

9,747,837

, plant and equipment - 2015
Opening
balance
1,743,394
850,332
857,868
1,329,883
4,966,361
-

Furniture and Fixtures
Motor Vehicles
Oﬃce Equipment
Computer Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Library Material

9,747,838
Reconciliation of property

2014

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

44,967
276,028
98,779
222,190
11,488

(9,616)
-

(181,176)
(213,542)
(129,741)
(557,431)
(2,118,388)
(485)

1,607,185
636,790
1,004,155
861,615
3,070,163
11,003

653,452

(9,616)

(3,200,763)

7,190,911

, plant and equipment - 2014

Furniture and Fixtures
Motor Vehicles
Oﬃce Equipment
Computer Equipment
Leasehold improvements

Opening
balance
2,769
1,063,873
354,365
413,467
-

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

1,796,149
576,799
1,304,090
6,172,569

(71,660)
-

(55,524)
(213,541)
(73,296)
(316,014)
(1,206,208)

1,743,394
850,332
857,868
1,329,883
4,966,361

1,834,474

9,849,607

(71,660)

(1,864,583)

9,747,838

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered oﬃce of the entity.
9.

Intangible assets
2015
Cost

Computer software, other

279,264

2014

Accumulated Carry ing value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment
(25,452)

253,812

91

Cost

28,437

Accumulated Carry ing value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment
(9,473)

18,964
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2015

2014

Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

Computer Software

Opening
balance
18,964

Additions

Amortisation

Total

250,827

(15,979)

253,812

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014
Opening
balance
21,039

Computer Software

Additions

Amortisation

7,301

(9,376)

Total
18,964

Impairment test
*Impairment test was performed by management on all of its assets including intangible assets using the following
impairment indicators;
a. Inspection of any physical damage,
b. Disposal plans,
c. Performance of the assets and
d. Changes in technological environment.
As a result of the impairment test TEDA management could not ﬁnd any asset/s that warrant(s) being impaired and no
damage was discovered during the asset veriﬁcation process and also no signiﬁcant technological changes were identiﬁed
which have an adverse eﬀect on computer equipment and other assets sensitive to technological changes.
10. Taxation Movement
Balance at beginning of the year
Current tax for the year recognised in surplus or deﬁcit
Interest on under provision
Normal income tax paid

3,277,985
938,472
147,369
(3,267,534)

1,136,191
2,141,794
-

1,096,292

3,277,985

11. Operating lease asset (liability )
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

181,025
(207,514)
(409,155)

57,995
(455,751)
-

(435,644)

(397,756)

Operating lease liability is from the rental of oﬃces used by TEDA situated at: 349 W itch-Hazel Avenue; Eco-origin Building;
Block F; Highveld Extension 70; Centurion for the period of three years starting from 1st of November 2013. It is caused by
the escalation on rental payable at every anniversary date.
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12. Change in estimate
Operating Lease
When TEDA signed the lease agreement for its current oﬃce it was not registered for VAT, however as at 1st July 2014 the
entity was registered for VAT prospectively.
The eﬀect of the VAT registration resulted into a change on the straight lined amount, the prior year ’s amortisation schedule
was VAT inclusive and the current year schedule excludes VAT. The estimated straight-lined amount was adjusted to align
to the amortisation schedule as follows:
Decrease in operating lease expense-Current Year of R 950,207.21 and Decrease in operating lease expense-Future
Periods of R 1,266,942.94 with the total being R 2,217,150.15.
13. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors*
Board of Directors Accrued Expenses
Employees Contributions Accrual
Payable: SARS

2,271,775
109,829
123,376
716,893

2,097,104
227,534
680,430
624,002

3,221,873

3,629,070

Trade and other payables from exchange transaction in 2013/14 included an amount of R948,626 for provision for
employee beneﬁts, the amount has since been reclassiﬁed and disclosed separately in Note 13 since it consititute a major
component of expenditure.
14. Employ ee Beneﬁts Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2015
Opening
Balance
Employee beneﬁt - Leave pay entitlement

948,626

Additions

2,227,297

Utilised
during the
year
(1,879,855)

Total

1,296,068

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014
Opening
Balance
Employee beneﬁt - Leave pay entitlement

116,667

Additions

1,612,386

Utilised
during the
year
(780,427)

Total

948,626

Employ ee beneﬁt cost provision
The provision is for leave entitlement not utilised by employees as at 30 June 2015 and it is only payable in cash upon
resignation.
15. Unspent Grant
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Transfers from City of Tshwane

5,886,270
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2015

2014

15. Unspent Grant (continued)
Movement during the y ear
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Income recognition during the year

2,041,632
50,571,875
(46,727,237)

14,036,837
47,500,000
(59,495,205)

5,886,270

2,041,632

The Unspent Grant is a transfer from the CoT to enable the entity to achieve its strategic objectives as per the Service
Delivery Agreement and business plan.
16. Loans from shareholders
Opening Balance
Loan repayment
Terms and conditions

-

588,482
(588,482)

-

-

(51,121)
362,899
1,648,156
(1,648,156)
130,376
(1,804)

(385,840)
265,615
571,657
(571,657)
111,372
-

17. Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset \ (liability)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provision
Unspent grant
Section 24C Allowance
Straight lining of operation lease
Prepayment
Total deferred tax

440,350

(8,853)

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset \ (liability)
At beginning of year
Movement on Property,equipment and intangible ﬁxed assets
Movement in provision for leave pay
Movement on Unspent Grant
Section 24C Allowance
Operating Lease straight lining
Prepayment

(8,853)
334,719
97,284
1,076,499
(1,076,499)
19,004
(1,804)
440,350

17,696
(370,870)
232,949
(3,358,657)
3,358,657
111,372
(8,853)

18. Share Capital and Equity
Authorised
1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each

1,000

1,000

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at 01 July 2014

1,000

1,000

Issued
Ordinary

1,000

1,000
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2015

2014

29,518
3,137,770
404,759
46,727,237
131,579

4,250
601,970
176,095
59,495,206
-

50,430,863

60,277,521

29,518
3,137,770
404,759

4,250
601,970
176,095

3,572,047

782,315

46,727,237
131,579

59,495,206
-

46,858,816

59,495,206

46,727,237

59,495,206

131,579

-

46,858,816

-

19. Revenue
Sale of tender documents
Rental Income
Interest earned - Bank; Current Account
Grant revenue recognised
Sponsorship Income

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Sale of tender documents
Rental Income
Interest earned- Bank Current Account

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:
Transfer revenue and other revenue
Grant Revenue Recognised
Sponsorship Income

20. Government grants and other revenue
Operating grants
Grant Income Recognised
Other revenue
Sponsorship revenue
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21. Employ ee related costs
Basic
Medical aid - contributions
Movement in Bonus and Leave Provision
Deﬁned contribution plans

24,616,427
875,035
347,442
1,177,860

18,249,476
559,539
831,959
330,365

27,016,764

19,971,339

552,539
23,572
12,000

1,720,367
169,160
-

588,111

1,889,527

1,265,505
84,000
72,603
24,000

1,305,552
36,018
6,000

1,446,108

1,347,570

5,526,916
571,041
282,557
165,691
110,400
126,584

4,690,739
234,311
25,200
-

6,783,189

4,950,250

41,136
225,062
211,086
173,378
37,264
94,270
37,708
233,368
30,852
11,998
116,552
118,266
187,090
207,640

288,504
278,569
290,024
183,954
215,581
385,853
287,298
323,447
252,790
240,406
340,204
310,519

1,725,670

3,397,149

Remuneration of Chief Executive Oﬃcer (appointed March 2015)
Basic Salary
Car Allowance
Medical aid - contributions
Cellphone Allowance

Remuneration of Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Basic Salary
Car Allowance
Medical aid - contributions
Deﬁned contributions plans
Cellphone Allowance

Remuneration of Executive Managers
Basic Salary
Car Allowance
Medical aid - contributions
Deﬁned contributions plans
Cellphone Allowance
Acting Allowance

22. Remuneration of Board Members
LD Mosoma (Appointed May 2015 as chairperson)
L Vutula (Chairperson until April 2015)
RS Bahula-Ermias
H Gouvelis
LD Haskins (Retired August 2014)
CBB Mahlati (Retired March 2014)
J Matsho (Retired March 2015)
ZG Mpungose (Appointed May 2015)
CR Mpyane
SP Mzizi (Appointed May 2015)
NM Ntsinde (Retired August 2014)
FK Sibanda
N Singh
JL Thubakgale
MW Yates
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2014

557,431
181,176
15,979
129,741
2,118,388
485
213,542

316,014
55,524
9,376
73,296
1,206,208
213,542

3,216,742

1,873,960

982,489
960,614

2,600,000
1,326,672
4,117,928
4,700,000
680,776

1,943,103

13,425,376

335,291
417,379
15,000
5,250
265,207
246,159
625,720

127,638
640,919
45,363
955,762
877,205
-

1,910,006

2,646,887

23. Depreciation and amortisation
Computer Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Intangible Assets
Oﬃce Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Library material
Motor Vehicles

24. Projects
AIDC Project
Agro Processing HUB Project
National Tooling Project
Special Projects
Stalls Project
TITIIC

25. Marketing, Trade and Investment
Branding
Events
Export Development and Promotion
Local and International Exhibitions
Marketing Production*
Public Relations
Research & Development - Marketing
Trade Conferences and Missions
Trade & Investments Intelligence

*During 2013/14 ﬁnancial year the entity incurred expenses amounting to R525,758 that was reported under consulting
expenses and it has since been reclassiﬁed under marketing production item.
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157,987
350,047
435,303
34,616
149,938
2,616,046
92,051
147,370
7,108,036
101,346
382,618
830
28,490
33,866
82,102
130,790
397,481
56,560
202,282
25,753
111,130
10,750
69,102
25,218

41,869
765,318
175,813
31,232
859,558
2,894,852
132,415
246,174
5,086,739
78,700
384,379
12,365
11,811
119,493
60,811
272,368
217,909
186,935
45,960
237,470
167,063

12,749,712

12,029,234

9,616

71,660

26. General expenses
Admin Fees (Pension and Group Risk)
Advertising
Auditors Fees
Bank charges
IT Expense
Consulting Fees (Including legal expenses)
Catering and Oﬃce Refreshments
Fines and penalties
Rental of Oﬃce Space and Storage
Insurance
Printing and stationery
Staﬀ welfare
Subscriptions and membership fees
Communication Expenses
Training and Development
Travel and Subsistence
Electricity
Conferences and Delegation
Planning and Staﬀ Recruitment
Repairs and Maintenance
Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases
Occupational Health and Safety
Venues and Facilities Expenses
Other expenses

27. Loss on assets written oﬀ
Carrying amount of assets written oﬀ
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28. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Normal Tax
Current Year
Over provision - current year

Deferred tax
Current year
Arising from prior period adjustments
Current
Deferred

948,923
(10,451)

1,946,135
-

938,472

1,946,135

(449,203)
-

27,891
(1,341)

(449,203)

26,550

938,472
(449,203)
489,269

1,946,135
26,550
1,972,685

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average eﬀective tax rate.
Tax eﬀect on permanent diﬀerences

28.00 %

28.00 %

Tax eﬀect on non-deductible expenses
Overprovision - current tax

2.52 %
(0.64)%

1.01 %
-%

29.88 %

29.01 %

A provision has been accrued for 2015 of R697,824 to be paid in July 2015.
29. Net cash ﬂow generated from (used in) operations
Surplus (Deﬁcit) for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities
Movements in Operating Lease
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Movement in Receivables from exchange transactions
Prepayments
Payables from exchange transactions
VAT
Taxes
Unspent Grant

1,369,981

4,889,231

3,216,742
9,616
67,871
347,442

1,873,960
71,660
397,756
831,959

766,903
640,157
(411,002)
(1,571,375)
(2,630,896)
3,844,638

(799,326)
2,322,429
2,168,343
(11,995,205)

5,650,077

(239,193)

30. Prior period errors
Adjustments amounting to R 119,697 were processed against Opening Retained Earnings in 2014/15. These adjustments
are due to the following;
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30. Prior period errors (continued)
•Co-operating rental agreement between TEDA and CoT was signed in July 2014 for the CoT to share the oﬃce space
being rented by TEDA at an equitable fee based on ﬂoor space. Occupation took place in May 2014 and the rental fees was
not reported at the end of 2013/14 ﬁnancial year thus revenue was understated.
•Previously capitalised website development cost, but the development of the website does not meet the recognition criteria
of an intangible asset. The website is developed to provide basic information about TEDA, products and services oﬀered,
not charging a fee for accessing such information.
•Reversal of amortisation charged on previously capitalised intangible asset and adjustment on deprecation on lost
computer equipment previously not reported.
•Recognition of lost computer equipment.
•Adjustment of taxation expense and interest and penalties levied on provisional tax.
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
Statement of ﬁnancial position
Increase in trade and other receivables from exhange transactions
Decrease in PPE
Decrease in intangible assets
Decrease in deferred tax liability
Increase in normal taxation liability
Decrease in unspent grant
Increase in trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Net eﬀect (Decrease) in accummulated surplus

-

601,970
(8,785)
(159,305)
847
(206,110)
419,645
(767,959)
(119,697)

Statement of Financial Performance
Increase in revenue from exchange transactions
Increase in general expense
Decrease in depreciation
Increase in loss on disposal of assets
Increase in taxation expense
Increase in revenue from non-exchange transactions
Increase in employee cost
Net decrease on surplus for the period

-

601,970
(625,227)
21,492
(9,005)
(9,606)
419,646
(518,967)
(119,697)

Cash ﬂow from operating activities
Increase in goods and services payment

-

(180,576)

Cash ﬂow from investing activities
Decrease in purchases of intanglible assets

-

180,576

Cash ﬂow statement

31. Comparative ﬁgures
The following Items are reclassiﬁed in to order achieve fair presentation of balances. The reclassiﬁed items are listed below
as follows;
Statement of ﬁnancial position
Account

Trade and other payables*
Provision for employee beneﬁts^
*The reclassiﬁcation of provision for employee beneﬁts from trade and other payables
from exchange transactions is in line with GRAP 1 paragraph 79.
^The reclassiﬁcation of provision for employee beneﬁts is aimed at separating line
items that are diﬀerent in nature and function in order to fairly present the entity's
ﬁnancial position.
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31. Comparative ﬁgures (continued)
Statement of Financial Performance
General expenses
Communication expense+
Membership fees and Subscriptions+
Other expenses~
Admin Fees (Pension and Group Risk)~
Fines and Penalties~
Staﬀ Welfare~
Training and development~
Planning and Staﬀ Recruitment~
Employee related costs*
Basic*
Medical Aid contributions*
Deﬁned contribution plans*
+The reclassiﬁcation is for membership fees and subscription that were disclosed
under communication expense.
~The following items; Admin Fees (Pension and Group Risk), Fines and Penalties,
Staﬀ Welfare, Training and development and Planning and Staﬀ Recruitment were
reclassiﬁed from other expenses item in other to fairly present expenses incurred by
the entity according to their nature and function as per GRAP 1.
*The medical aid contribution item included amounts which related to UIF,SDL and
contributions to deﬁned contribution plans, the item has been reclassiﬁed in order to
provide a fair presentation of expenses incurred by the entity in terms of nature and
function.
Cash Flow Statement
Cash ﬂow from investing activities
Purchase of Oﬃce Furniture and Fixtures*
Purchase of Leasehold improvements^
*The reclassiﬁcation is in line with GRAP 1, where purchases of oﬃce furniture and
ﬁxtures is separated from leasehold improvements purchases in order to achieve fair
presentation of cash ﬂow activities of the entity.
^The reclassiﬁcation of leasehold purchases is aimed at providing a fair presentaion on
all cash ﬂow activities from diﬀerent classes of prperty, plant and equipment as
disclosed on the cash ﬂow statement.

131,304
367,059
-

119,493
11,811
167,062
41,869
132,415
12,365
60,811
45,960

17,672,289
948,124
-

18,249,476
559,539
330,365

7,968,718
-

1,796,148
6,172,570

At amortised
cost
32,422
9,902,392

Total
32,422
9,902,392

9,934,814

9,934,814

At amortised
cost
3,221,873

Total

32. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of ﬁnancial instruments
2015
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
2014
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.Financial instruments disclosure (continued)
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised
cost
799,325
5,152,789

Total
799,325
5,152,789

5,952,114

5,952,114

At amortised
cost
3,629,070

Total

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

3,629,070

33. Budget Information
Material diﬀerences between budget and actual amounts
The entity has been allocated a budget of R 47.5 million and retaied the surplus amounting to R 2.4 million and a further R3
million to cover income tax liability which was eﬀected during the adjustment budget period. The approved budget covers
the period from 01 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. The budget and accounting bases diﬀer. The ﬁnancial statements are
prepared on the accrual basis using a classiﬁcation on the nature of expenses in the statement of ﬁnancial performance.
The ﬁnancial statements diﬀer from the budget, which is approved on cash basis.
A reconciliation between the actual amounts on the comparable basis as presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts and the actual amounts in the cash ﬂow statement for the period ended 30 June 2015 i s
presented below. The ﬁnancial statements and budget documents are prepared for the same period. There is a basis
diﬀerence: the budget is prepared on a cash basis and the ﬁnancial statements on the accrual basis.
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33. Budget Information (continued)
TEDA considers 10% a material variance in monitoring spending trends, where a detail explanation of the variance is
important in order to aid planning and decision making. The budget is as per the economic classiﬁcation and explanation on
spending is as follows;
Compensation of Employees
Expenditure for Employee cost is informed by the current staﬀ complement and for the period under review expenditure is at
95% which in par with projected expenditure at this time of the year.
Remuneration to Board of Directors
Expenditure is at 88% and is as expected after the inital work plan was revised due to resignation of some board members.
Goods and Services
Expenditure is below the norm at 66% however it is in accordance with the procurement plan i.e Funding Model and
Organisational design (OD) as well as Agro processing HUB project have been emplemented. The expenditure excludes
accrued expenses of R928,030 which increases expenditure percentage to 71%.
Capital Expenditure
The expenditure for capital goods is at 69% mainly attributable to computer, oﬃce equipment and the procurement of
intangile assets. Expenditure is below expectation attributed by the management decision to halt the processes of procuring
Integrated Financial Management System rather explore the possiblitity of participating into the City of Tshwane's SAP
system which is currently being implemented with the expected go live date of 1st September 2015.
Marketing, Trade and Investement
Marketing, trade and investment expenditure is at 39% excluding accruals of R925,845 with a total expenditure percentage
of 74%.
Projects
Expenditure is at 16% excluding accruals of R294,747 which increases to 20%. Expenditure is below budget due to the
postponement of TITTIC to early 2016.
Changes from the approved budget to the adjusted budget
The changes between the approved and ﬁnal budget are a consequence of reallocations within the approved budget
parameters.
34. Reconciliation between budget and cash ﬂow statement
Operating activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basis diﬀerences

12,181,021
(6,530,944)

Net cash ﬂows from operating activities

5,650,077

5,008,929
(5,067,546)
(58,617)

Investing activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basis diﬀerences

(853,469)
(47,005)

(10,037,481)
-

Net cash ﬂows from investing activities

(900,474)

(10,037,481)

-

(588,483)

5,650,077
(900,474)
4,749,603

(58,617)
(10,037,481)
(588,483)
(10,684,581)

Financing activities
Basis diﬀerences
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net cash generated from operating, investing and ﬁnancing activities
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35. Commitments
Authorised operational expenditure
Already contracted and authorised
Commitments less than one year

8,331,873

596,642

Total operational commitments
Commitments less than one year

8,331,873

596,642

7,539,678
2,584,355

7,817,094
11,441,226

10,124,033

19,258,320

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease pay ments due
- within one year
- in second to ﬁfth year inclusive

Operating lease commitment is the rental of oﬃces used by TEDA situated at: 349 Witch-Hazel Avenue; Eco-origin
Building; Block F; Highveld Extension 70; Centurion for the period of three years starting from 1st of November 2013. No
contingent rent is payable.
Operating leases - Rental Income
Minimum lease pay ments due
- within one year
- in second to ﬁfth year inclusive

3,086,381
787,858

2,831,542
3,874,239

3,874,239

6,705,781

TEDA has entered into a sub-letting agreement with the CoT which allows the CoT permission to utilise the 1st Floor of the
rented oﬃces used by TEDA situated at: 349 Witch-Hazel Avenue; Eco-origin Building; Block F; Highveld Extension 70;
Centurion for the period of 27 months starting from 1st of May 2014. There are no contigent rents receivable.
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36. Related parties
`

Relationships
Controlling entity:
Municipal entity under the same control:
Municipal entity under the same control:
Compensation to board members and key management

City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality
Housing Company Tshwane
Sandspruit Water Works Association
Refer to note 20 and 21

Related party balances
Amounts included in Trade receivable regarding related party
City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality

6,936

543,975

57,651,938

47,500,000

1,208

588,482
-

Rental received from related party
City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality

4,050,000

-

Expenses paid by the related party on behalf of TEDA
CoT (Salary of Acting CEO, seconded by CoT)
SAP implementation of MM and FI/CO

1,057,278
505,296

-

Related party transactions
Transfers received from related party
City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality
Payment to related party
CoT (Loan from shareholder)
CoT (Printing services)

TEDA beneﬁted from the use of the following services provided by the related party at no cost to TEDA:
Use of internal audit resources from CoT,
Use of Audit Committee resources from CoT and
Use of Network provided by CoT.
37. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening Balance
Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure - current year
Written oﬀ

246,174
662,939
(38,990)

246,174
-

870,123

246,174

Included under other expenses for 2015 is interest and penalties incurred amounting to R662,939 detailed as follows (2015:
Is R147,051.51 from SARS for 2015 provisional tax under provision and R 515,569 charged by CSRI for TITIIC
postponement) (2014: R11,525 penalty charged for late payment of COID and R234,649.30 from SARS for 2014 provisional
tax under provision and late submission of PAYE,SDL and UIF, which was due to the delay in registering for PAYE,SDL and
UIF.

38. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Less: Amounts written oﬀ
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-

1,188,088

38. Irregular expenditure (continued)
Details of irregular expenditure condoned
Non-compliance with the SCM regulations.
Procurement made by CoT in relation to the
acquisition of recruitment services to recruit
TEDA CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and
Oﬃce Manager.

Written oﬀ by (Board of Directors)
None

39. Going concern
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that the funds will be available to ﬁnance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
In assessing the going concern, the accounting authority considers ﬁnancial position, potential sources of funding and
political factors.
We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2015, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 9,013,706 and that the entity's
total assets exceed its liabilities by R 9,014,706.
40. Events after the reporting date
The entity experienced the following events after the reporting date:
•Non-Adjusting Events
The organisation is in the process of ﬁnalizing the Organisational Design (OD) process which is aimed at positioning itself to
its external environment, there was a need to identify capacity needs and skills requirements aligned to business model that
will allow TEDA to be a larger entity.The OD process identiﬁed a new organisational structure which was approved with 60
positions. Based on the new structure, competency assessments were conducted for all employees to ascertain
competency levels and their suitability in terms of competencies required as informed by the new structure. The cost
implication of the process is yet to be established.
On the 10th and 24th July 2015 two laptops were reported stolen with a combined book value of R14,527.00 and were
reported to the South African Police Service with the following case numbers: 223/07/2015 and 356/07/2015 respectively .
On the 7th and 20th of July 2015 a deviation in terms of section 36(1) of the Supply Chain Management Regulations for
Multichoice and Greenboard was approved and noted to the amount of R13,501.76 and R227,179.20 respectively .
41. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Audit fees
Current year fee
Amount paid - current year

435,303
(152,746)
282,557

175,813
(175,813)
-

PAYE and UIF
Opening balance
Current year payroll deductions
Amount paid - current year
Amount paid - previous years

585,013
7,424,787
(6,757,268)
(535,639)
716,893
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41. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

2014

(continued)

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions
Opening balance
Current year raised
Amount paid - current year
Amount paid - previous years

160,726
2,052,894
(2,052,894)
(160,726)
-

889,904
(729,178)
160,726

The entity has a pension fund deﬁned contribution plan with Momentum where employees pay a ﬁxed amount and the
employer pays for the administration fees.Additional text
The entity has a group risk plan with Discovery Life where employees pay a ﬁxed amount and the employer pays for the
administration fees.
Medical Aid contributions are with Discovery Medical Aid Scheme and Bonitas Medical Aid Scheme.
VAT
VAT receivable

1,571,375

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note .
All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year.
VAT is calculated on all qualiﬁying goods and services delivered to/by TEDA on an invoice basis and on a 2 month(s) tax
period in odd months.
42. Deviation from supply chain management regulations
Paragraph 12(1)(a)-(d)of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management
policy must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a:
•
Written or verbal quotation for values up to R2,000 up to R10,000 (VAT included),
•
Formal written quotations for values over R10,000 up to R200,000 (VAT included), and
•
Competitive bidding process for values above R200,000 (VAT Included).
Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting oﬃcer may dispense with the oﬃcial procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and then reports them to the next meeting of
the accounting oﬃcer and includes a note to the annual ﬁnancial statements.
In terms of section 36(1)(a) of the Supply Chain Management Regulations, the accounting oﬃcer may dispense with the
oﬃcial procurement processes in the following instances:
•
in an emergency
•
if such goods or services are produced or available from a single provider only
•
for the acquisition of special works of art or historical objects where speciﬁcations are diﬃcult to complete
•
in any other exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible to follow the oﬃcial procurement processes.
TEDA deviated from the oﬃcial procurement processes during the ﬁnancial year due to services available from;•
Services available from a sole provider (R 350,255.87)
•
Singe source (R131,700.74)
•
Impracticality (R 512,651.69)

107

-

TEDA ANNUAL REPORT
2014/15

Tshwane Economic Development Agency SOC Ltd
(Registration number 2006/019396/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand

2015

2014

43. Regulation 45
The annual ﬁnancial statements of a municipality must disclose particulars of any award of more than R2 000 to a person
who is a spouse, child or parent of a person in the service of the state or has been in the service of the state in the previous
12 months indicating:
•
The name of that person
•
The capacity in which that person is in the service of the state/municipality; and
•
The amount of the award
The following awarded bidders declared that:
Izak Zirk Joubert, Agnes Muller and Frederick Adriaan Henning declared that their spouse works for the Department of
Higher Education as Chief Director,Social Develoment Department as Director and Pilot Mango SOC Ltd respectively the
award of the contract to the value of R7,980.00 followed normal procurement process and no competing bidders were
disadvantaged in the process. The declaration of the bidder does not have negative impact on TEDA.
Transnem Tayb Carrim declared that his spouse works for GCSI as Chief Director , the award of the contract to the value of
R4,104.00 followed normal procurement process and no competing bidders were disadvantaged in the process. The
declaration of the bidder does not have negative impact on TEDA.
44. Contingencies
The entity had a contingent liability of approximately R 2,991,937.50 as at 30 June 2015, pertaining to the following:
• Possible penalties and interest of R980,812.10 from SARSs regarding non-compliance with Section 28 of V AT Act.
• The former CEO has lodged an appeal against his dismissal as a result the entity might pay R1,138,000 for both
settlement and litigation costs.
•Claim in respect to the TITIIC 2015 (postponed conference) amounting to R873,125.40 and litigation is underway.

45. Other revenue
Sale of Tender Documents
Rental Income

29,518
3,137,770

4,250
601,970

3,167,288

606,220

404,759
404,759

176,095
176,095

46. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank- Current Account

The amount included in Investment (short-term investment accounts) revenue arising from exchange transactions
amounted to R404,759.
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CHAPTER 6
AUDITOR-GENERAL’S AUDIT FINDINGS
6.1

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

The following table shows the action plans based on the audit outcome in the 2014/15
audit report. The action plans were drafted to address the root causes as highlighted by
the auditors.
Table 17: Action plan based on the Auditor General’s report of 2014/15
No.

Finding

Responsible
person

Action plan

Due date

Comments

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Immediately
(AFS
adjustment).
February 2016
(check list)

Reported in
the previous
year (material
amendments)

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Ongoing

Not reported
in the
previous year

ANNEXURE A: MATTERS AFFECTING THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

1

No disclosure of
receivable future
minimum payments
for subleases

Adjust AFS and develop GRAP
checklist. ERP system

SARS: The entity is to source
funds in its budget to pay for
future income tax obligations.
2

Fruitless and
wasteful
expenditure
incurred

3

Audit Of
Predemined
Objectives
Indicators/targets
that are not speciﬁc
and measurable

4

VAT: Non compliance with
Section 28 of the
Value-added Tax
Act

CSIR: The entity will ensure
that any possible future
postponement of TITIIC
conference will be made in line
with the terms of conditions
stipulated by the CSIR in order
to avoid penalties.
Request review of 2015/16
KPIs by Internal Audit for
usefulness and reliability
Craft new KPIs for ﬁnancial
year 2016/17 in line with the
internal audit recommendation
on the adjustments of the
2015/16 KPIs
Grant invoices to City of
Tshwane include VAT , and VAT
returns have been ﬁled
timeously as at July 2015.
Management will ensure
continuous compliance with this
requirement.
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Senior Manager:
Strategy

Adjusted
Business Plan
2015/16 by
December
2015
Business Plan
2016/17: by
January 2016

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Ongoing

Reported in
the previous
year

Not reported
in previous
year
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No.

Finding

Action plan

Responsible
person

Due date

Comments

5

Possible penalties
and interest from
SARS regarding
non-compliance
with Section 28 of
the VAT Act were
not recognised.

Engage SARS on Voluntary
Disclosure Programme

Chief Financial
Officer

January 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

6

Interest and
penalties recorded
under accrual
account instead of
normal taxation
account

Reclassify interest and
penalties into a correct GL
account. Ensure correct
classification of expenditure.

Chief Financial
Officer

Ongoing

Reported

December
2015

Reported in
the previous
year

Additional quality review of
AFS.

ANNEXURE B: OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

7

Contracts were
awarded to
companies which
have individuals
employed by the
state.

8

The SCM policy
does not include
SCM regulation
requirements.

9

Incorrect preference
points awarded for
pricing

10

11

Related party
relationships were
not completely
disclosed.

Rental revenue was
not straight-lined.

Management will investigate the
interest of the persons identified
by the auditors and report those
individuals to the heads of the
state entities they work for; then
it will submit to the auditors the
evidence of the investigations,
and communications and
reports will be submitted to the
heads of the entities.

Chief Financial
Officer

February 2016

Participate on the City’s crosscheck system in order to detect
companies with owners in the
employ of the state before
contracts are awarded.
The SCM policy has been
reviewed and the omitted
regulation updated accordingly.
Continuous update of the SCM
policy according to the
prescribed framework.
Management will ensure that
calculations are reviewed by an
additional quality assurer.
Lock SCM points calculation
templates.
Develop a plan to ensure
timeous confirmation of all
transactions with related
parties’ prior finalisation of AFS.

Adjust AFS and develop GRAP
disclosure checklist
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Chief Financial
Officer

January 2016
Continuous

Reported in
the previous
year

Chief Financial
Officer

Ongoing

Reported in
the previous
year

Chief Financial
Officer

January 2016
and ongoing

Not reported
in previous
year

Chief Financial
Officer

Immediately
(AFS
adjustment).
February 2016
(check list)

Not reported
in previous
year
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No.

Finding

Action plan

Responsible
person

12

Operating lease
liability understated

Implement SAP to ensure
timeous review of the AFS

Chief Financial
Officer

30 June 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

13

Incomplete
disclosure of
contingent liabilities

Develop GRAP disclosure
checklist to ensure
completeness and accuracy on
reported figures

Chief Financial
Officer

30 June 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

14

Change in estimate
was not disclosed
accurately.

Develop GRAP disclosure
checklist to ensure
completeness and accuracy on
reported figures

Chief Financial
Officer

Due date

February 2016
(check list)

Comments

Not reported
in previous
year

Include accounting policies for:

15

16

Accounting Policy
for prepayments
and VAT not
disclosed

Assets with no bar
codes

1.

VAT receivable

2.

Prepayment

Customise Caseware system to
ensure that policies are not
generic.
Management will ensure that
Property, Plant and Equipment
items, regardless of value, are
bar-coded and capitalised in the
fixed assets register and
accounted for in terms of
GRAP 17, including subcomponents of the server
machine.

Immediately (AFS
adjustment).
February 2016
(check list)

April 2016

Immediately
January 2016

December
2015
January 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

Not reported
in previous
year

The threshold of R2 000,00 will
be amended to R7 000,00.
17

Assets with
duplicate barcodes
on the FAR

Re-barcode assets

February 2016

October 2015

Not reported
in previous
year

18

Expenditure paid
through prepayment
account not
appropriately
authorised

Management will align the
journal policy and approval level
according to the delegated
authority.

Chief Financial
Officer

March 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

19

Employees’ tax not
paid over to SARS
within 7 days after
month end

Chief Financial
Officer

January 2016
and ongoing

Not reported
in previous
year

Company
Secretary

October 2015

Process payment to SARS and
ensure that all payments are
made according to applicable
prescripts and regulations.
Make a voluntary disclosure.
Form COR 30 has been lodged.

20

Share capital: Noncompliance with
Section 70(6) of the
Companies Act,
2008 (Act 71 of
2008)

A compliance checklist has
been compiled and approved by
the Board to assist with
avoiding non-compliance with
legislation. This will be referred
to on a monthly basis to
mitigate recurrences.
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Not reported
in previous
year
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Finding

Action plan

Responsible
person

Due date

Comments

to on a monthly basis to
mitigate recurrences.

21

Amounts per VAT
201 do not agree
with the GL.

Adjust income and VAT output
on the financial statements. A
second level of quality
assurance is to be conducted.

Chief Financial
Officer

Ongoing

Not reported
in previous
year

22

Income tax: Income
tax understated

Will be followed up with SARS
to confirm the correctness of
the procedure followed by
management in the matter.

Chief Financial
Officer

January 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

23

No evidence to
confirm that servicelevel agreements
with service
providers were
monitored by IT
management

Enter into a memorandum of
understanding with the City of
Tshwane

The Executive:
Corporate
Services

March 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

24

There is no
documented,
approved IT
security policy to
ensure data
confidentiality,
integrity and
availability.

The policy is to be sent for
approval.

The Executive:
Corporate
Services

March 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

25

The processes
guiding user access
are not in place.

26

There are no
documented
processes in place
for independent
reviews of the
activities of the
person responsible
for granting users
access to financial
systems.

27

No backup and
retention strategy is
implemented.

28

There are no
formally
documented and
approved processes
in place to manage
upgrades and/or
updates made to all
financial systems.

Not reported
in previous
year
Chief Financial
Officer and
Executive:
Corporate
Services

March 2016

A backup and retention strategy
has been included in the ICT
Security Policy.

The Executive:
Corporate
Services

March 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

User access processes are to
be documented.

Chief Financial
Officer and
Executive:
Corporate
Services

March 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

User access processes are to
be documented.
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Not reported
in previous
year
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No.

Finding

Action plan

Responsible
person

Due date

Comments

Executive:
Corporate
Services

December
2016

Reported in
the previous
year

updates made to all
ﬁnancial systems.

29

Minimum
competence
assessment was
not done.

All relevant employees are to
attend the course at the
University of Pretoria as part of
City of Tshwane (Leadership
Academy) programme.
Competency assessment will
be done after the twelve-month
training period.

ANNEXURE C: OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

30

Commitments were
not disclosed
appropriately.

31

Reconciliation was
not performed
correctly.

32

Lack of evidence
that entries in the
register and bid
results were
published on TEDA
website

33

SCM: Duplicate
supplier information
on the supplier
database

34

SCM – VAT vendor
suppliers listed as
non-VAT vendors

35

Lack of suﬃcient
evidence to conﬁrm
timeous approval of
a deviation
Company Secretary
certiﬁcation of the
ﬁnancial statements

36

37

Certiﬁcation of
ﬁnancial statements
by Company
Secretary
Assets are not

Develop a GRAP disclosure
checklist.
Management will customise the
Caseware system to ensure
that all GRAP disclosures are
relevant to the entity.
Incorporate a special condition
on all contracts to ensure that
all invoices are accompanied by
statements
Quality assurance will be
conducted to ensure that all
entries are publicised on the
website.
The upload request form is to
be approved before any content
is publicised.

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

February 2016
January 2016

January 2016

October 2015
January 2016

Not reported
in previous
year

Not reported
in previous
year

Not reported
in previous
year

Not reported
in previous
year

The implemented SAP system
will eliminate possible
inconsistencies of vendors’
information.

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Management will ensure that
written approvals are done on
time.

Chief Financial
Oﬃcer

Ongoing

Not reported
in previous
year

Review of the Company
Secretary’s declaration

Company
Secretary

Ongoing

Not reported
in previous
year

Management will continue to

Chief Financial

December

Not reported
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December
2015

Not reported
in previous
year
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No. Finding
adequately insured.

Action plan
make regular assessments to
inform its decisions on
insurance in future.
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Responsible
person

Due date

Comments

Oﬃcer

2015

in previous
year

Tshwane Economic Development Agency
5th Floor
Anker Building
1279 Mike Crawford Road
Centurion CBD
Tel: 012 358 6552
Website: www.teda.org.za

